EFFECTIVENESS OF BENSON'S RELAXATION THERAPY ON BLOOD PRESSURE AMONG MOTHERS WITH PIH AT SELECTED HOSPITALS, CHENNAI, 2011.

DISSERTATION SUBMITTED TO

THE TAMIL NADU DR.M.G.R.MEDICAL UNIVERSITY CHENNAI IN PARTIAL FULFILMENT OF REQUIREMENT FOR THE DEGREE OF

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN NURSING

APRIL 2012

EFFECTIVENESS OF BENSON'S RELAXATION THERAPY ON BLOOD PRESSURE AMONG MOTHERS WITH PIH AT SELECTED HOSPITALS, CHENNAI, 2011.

Certified that this is the bonafide work of

Mrs. MINI ABRAHAM

OMAYAL ACHI COLLEGE OF NURSING #45, AMBATTUR ROAD, PUZHAL CHENNAI - 600 066.

COLLEGE SEAL

SIGNATURE:

Dr. (Mrs.) S.KANCHANA B.Sc. (N). R.N., R.M., M.Sc.(N)., Ph.D., Principal & Research director, Omayal Achi College of Nursing, Puzhal, Chennai – 600 066, Tamil Nadu.

Dissertation Submitted to

THE TAMIL NADU DR.M.G.R.MEDICAL UNIVERSITY

CHENNAI

In partial fulfilment of requirement for the degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN NURSING

APRIL 2012

EFFECTIVENESS OF BENSON'S RELAXATION THERAPY ON BLOOD PRESSURE AMONG MOTHERS WITH PIH AT SELECTED HOSPITALS, CHENNAI, 2011.

Approved by Research Committee in December 2010.

PROFESSOR IN NURSING RESEARCH

Dr. (Mrs.).S.KANCHANA

B.Sc. (N). R.N., R.M., M.Sc.(N)., Ph.D., Principal & Research director, Omayal Achi College of Nursing, Puzhal, Chennai – 600 066, Tamil Nadu.

CLINICAL SPECIALITY- HOD Mrs.S.BHAGAVATHY

B.Sc. (N). R.N. R.M., M.Sc. (N). Obstetrics and Gynecological Nursing, Omayal Achi College of Nursing. Puzhal , Chennai – 600 066, Tamil Nadu.

CLINICAL SPECIALITY - RESEARCH GUIDE Mrs.S.BHAGAVATHY

B.Sc. (N). R.N. R.M., M.Sc. (N). Head of the Department, Obstetrics and Gynecological Nursing, Omayal Achi College of Nursing. Puzhal , Chennai – 600 066, Tamil Nadu.

MEDICAL EXPERT Dr.(Mrs).SANDY JAISON,

M.B.B.S, M.D., DNB (O& G)., Medical Officer, Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Sir Ivan Stedeford Hospital, Ambattur, Chennai – 600 053.

Dissertation Submitted to

THE TAMIL NADU DR.M.G.R.MEDICAL UNIVERSITY

CHENNAI

In partial fulfilment of requirement for the degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN NURSING

APRIL 2012

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I thank God almighty for the abundant blessings throughout my career and personal life.

At the outset, I the investigator of the study, express my heartfelt thanks and gratitude to the honourable **Managing Trustee**, Omayal Achi College of Nursing for giving me a chance to undergo the postgraduate program in this esteemed institution for the fulfillment of my professional career.

I am greatly indebted to **Dr.Rajanarayanan**, B.Sc., M.B.B.S., FRSH [London], Research Co-ordinator, ICCR and Honorary Professor in Community Medicine for conceptualizing the study.

I am extremely grateful to **Dr. (Mrs.).S.Kanchana,** Principal, Omayal Achi College of Nursing, for her constant guidance, patience, source of inspiration, valuable suggestions and encouragement throughout the study.

I express my humble gratitude to **Prof.** (**Mrs.**).**D.Celina**, Vice Principal, Omayal Achi College of Nursing, for her valuable guidance and support during the study.

I express my sincere gratitude to the **Executive Members** of Research Committee ICCR for providing valuable suggestions to give shape to the study.

My grateful endless thanks to **Mrs.S.Bhagavathy**, Head of the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecological Nursing, for her timely corrections, support and motivation till the final fraction of the study.

My deepest gratitude and immense thanks to Mrs. S. Amudha lecturer of Obstetrics and Gynecological Nursing, for her constant source of inspiration, guidance and encouragement, which was a key for the successful completion of the study.

A bouquet of thanks to **Mrs.Dyana Devadhas** and **Mrs.Beula Jeyaselvi**, Lecturers, in Obstetrics and Gynecological Nursing Department for their constant encouragement, scholarly suggestions and expert guidance in every phase of the study.

I wish to express my sincere thanks to our class Co-ordinator **Mrs.Manonmani** and all experts in the field who have given their valuable suggestions.

A memorable note of gratitude to **Dr. Prabha Ganapathy**, and **Dr. Mala** of **Vijaya hospital and Mambalam public health centre**, for granting permission and cooperation for conducting the study.

I extend my grateful thanks to all the **Medical and Nursing Experts** in the field of obstetrics and gynecology who gave constructive criticisms, modified, refined and validated the content of the tool.

I extend my warmest thanks to **Biostatistician** for his help in statistical analysis of the study.

A sincere word of appreciation and gratitude for the co-operation extended by the mothers with PIH who participated in my study during data collection.

I am indeed thankful to the **Librarians** of Omayal Achi College of Nursing and The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R.Medical University, for their co-operation extended in procuring the literature related to the study. I extend my warmest thanks to **Ms.Santhi**, M.A., B.Ed., for her patience and expertise in editing the manuscript in English.

I extend my sincere gratitude to **Ms.Meenal**, M.A., B.Ed., for her patience and expertise in editing the manuscript in Tamil .

I am extremely grateful to **Mr.G.K.Venkataraman** of Elite Computers for his extreme patience and co-operation in completing the manuscript.

I am immensely grateful to my colleagues Ms.Sheebha Suvitha, Ms.Suprabha, and Ms.Vijayalakshmi, for their timely help and support throughout my study.

I thank my **peer evaluators Ms.Ansu Mammen and Ms.Blossom Augustine,** for their timely and appropriate corrections and suggestions.

I extend my bouquet of thanks to my dearest husband Mr.Skariah Varghese, my dear daughter Sofia Ann Skariah, my in laws Mr.P.C.Varghese and Mrs.Annamma Varghese for their encouragement and support throughout my study.

I express my heartfelt love and gratitude to my beloved parents, Mr.V.M.Abraham and Mrs.Sossamma Abraham and my dearest sister Mrs.Elizabeth Oomen Thomas and family and my dear brother Mr.Mathews Abraham and family for their special prayers, support and strength throughout my life.

I extend my thanks and gratitude to Mr.Suresh Babu for the technical support.

A special bouquet of thanks and a memorable gratitude to my lovable friends **Charismians** for their valuable help and thoughtfulness.

Above all, I thank **God Almighty** for showering his blessings and sustaining me in all the endeavors to complete the dissertation.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| CHAPTER | CONTENTS | PAGE NO. |
|---------|---|----------|
| | ABSTRACT | |
| Ι | INTRODUCTION | |
| | Background of the study | 1 |
| | Need for the study | 4 |
| | Statement of the problem | 6 |
| | Objectives | 6 |
| | Operational Definitions | 7 |
| | Assumptions | 7 |
| | Null hypotheses | 7 |
| | Delimitation | 8 |
| | Conceptual framework | 8 |
| | Outline of the report | 12 |
| II | REVIEW OF LITERATURE | |
| | Review of related literature | 13 |
| III | RESEARCH METHODOLOGY | |
| | Research design | 24 |
| | Variables | 25 |
| | Setting of the study | 25 |
| | Population | 25 |
| | Sample | 26 |
| | Criteria for sample selection | 26 |
| | Sample size | 26 |
| | Sampling technique | 27 |
| | Development and description of the tool | 27 |
| | Content validity | 28 |
| | Ethical consideration | 28 |
| | Pilot study | 28 |

| CHAPTER | CONTENTS | PAGE NO. |
|---------|---------------------------------------|------------|
| | Reliability of the tool | 29 |
| | Procedure for data collection | 29 |
| | Plan for data analysis | 31 |
| IV | DATA ANALYSIS AND INTERPRETATION | |
| | Organization of data | 32 |
| | Presentation of data | 33 |
| V | DISCUSSION | 46 |
| VI | SUMMARY, CONCLUSION, IMPLICATIONS, | 51 |
| | RECOMMENDATIONS AND LIMITATION | |
| | BIBLIOGRAPHY | 58 |
| | APPENDICES | i - xxxiii |

LIST OF TABLES

| TABLE | TITLE | |
|-------|---|----|
| NO. | | |
| 1(a) | Frequency and percentage distribution of demographic variables | 33 |
| | with respect to age, education, occupation of the mother, work | |
| | pattern and family income per month. | |
| | Frequency and percentage distribution of demographic variables | 35 |
| 1(b) | with respect to type of family, area of residence, family history | |
| | of hypertension and parity. | |
| 1(c) | Frequency and percentage distribution of demographic variables | 37 |
| | with respect to gestational age, duration of PIH, on treatment, | |
| | diet and history of any other illness. | |
| 2(a) | Frequency and Percentage distribution of pretest and post test | 39 |
| | level of Systolic and diastolic BP (mmHg) in Group A. | |
| 2(b) | Frequency and Percentage distribution of pretest and post test | 40 |
| | level of Systolic and diastolic BP (mmHg) in Group B. | |
| 3(a) | Comparison of pretest and post test level of Systolic and | 41 |
| | diastolic Blood Pressure (mmHg) in Group A. | |
| 3(b) | Comparison of pretest and post test level of Systolic and | 42 |
| | Diastolic Blood Pressure (mmHg) in Group B. | |
| 4(a) | Comparison of pretest level of Systolic and diastolic Blood | 43 |
| | Pressure (mmHg) between Group A and Group B. | |
| 4(b) | Comparison of post test level of Systolic and diastolic Blood | 44 |
| | Pressure(mmHg) between Group A and Group B. | |
| 1 | | 1 |

LIST OF FIGURES

| FIGURE NO. | TITLE | PAGE NO. |
|------------|-----------------------|----------|
| 1 | Conceptual Framework. | 11 |

LIST OF APPENDICES

| ADENDIV | TITLE | |
|----------|---|--------|
| APPENDIA | | NO. |
| А | Ethical clearance certificate | i |
| В | Letter seeking permission for conducting the main study | ii |
| С | Content validity | |
| | (i) Letter seeking experts' opinion for content validity | iv |
| | (ii) List of experts for content validity | v |
| | (iii) Certificate of content validity | vii |
| | - No Harm Certificate | xiv |
| D | -Calibration and standardization certificate for BP apparatus | |
| | -Certificate in relaxation techniques | |
| Е | Certificate of English editing | xix |
| F | Certificate of Tamil editing | XX |
| G | Informed consent | |
| | -Informed consent requisition form-English | xxi |
| | -Informed written consent form-English | xxii |
| | -Informed consent requisition form-Tamil | xxiii |
| | -Informed written consent form-Tamil | xxiv |
| Н | Copy of the tool for data collection with scoring key. | |
| Ι | Plagiarism | XXX |
| J | Coding for the demographic variables | xxxi |
| K | Intervention Tool | xxxiii |
| | Photographs | |
| | Pamphlet | |

ABSTRACT

A quasi-experimental study to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH at selected hospitals, Chennai, 2011.

INTRODUCTION

High blood pressure during pregnancy can decrease the amount of blood flow to the placenta, which affects the baby's supply of oxygen and nutrients. This may slow down the baby's growth and increase the risk of preterm delivery and if left unmanaged, this may result in fetal and maternal mortality. Therefore, antenatal mothers should be periodically investigated to rule out abnormal and sustained elevations in blood pressure, which should be managed appropriately in a timely manner to prevent complications arising from it.

Studies have shown that as like pharmacological therapy and other complementary modalities, relaxation techniques go a long way in reducing hypertension and sustaining it at controlled levels chronically.

Relaxation provides a decrease in sympathetic nervous system allowing the arteries to widen and increases the available oxygen and blood flow to the body tissues and the peripheries.

Thus it has been found through studies that, appropriate prenatal care and proper lifestyle modifications like regular visits to the physician's office for checkups, diet, exercises, and relaxation techniques can help to prevent complications arising out of pregnancy and have proved to be the better key in reducing the risks from pregnancy.

Complementary therapy in nursing is diverse and complex as like other nursing specialties. Keeping this in view, the present study was done to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure control among mothers with PIH in a cost effective way.

. Objective

To assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH.

METHODOLOGY

Research design

Quasi - experimental design-non equivalent control group. .

Setting

The study was conducted in selected hospitals in Chennai. Approximately 35-50 PIH mothers were admitted per month in both the selected hospitals.

Participants

60 mothers with PIH between 20 to 38 weeks of gestational age from selected hospitals, Chennai.

Intervention

Administration of Benson's relaxation therapy to the mothers with PIH and assessing the blood pressure level by standardized sphygmomanometer before and after therapy. A pamphlet was prepared and given to provide information regarding the steps to be followed in Benson's relaxation therapy.

Measurements and Tool

The blood pressure level of mothers with PIH was assessed by sphygmomanometer and categorized them according to WHO/ISH -Blood pressure classification for PIH (2009)⁹³ standard guidelines. Descriptive and inferential statistics were used to analyze the data.

RESULTS

The present study aimed to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH at selected hospitals, Chennai. The analysis revealed that the mean difference in post-test systolic blood pressure was 30.06 and 15.4 in post-test diastolic blood pressure with the calculated't' value of 13.252 and 14.588 respectively which showed high statistical significance at p<0.001 between Group A and Group B.

DISCUSSION

The study concluded that there was a significant difference in the blood pressure level among mothers with PIH in the post test after Benson's relaxation therapy. Thus Benson's relaxation therapy was an effective tool to control blood pressure among mothers with PIH.

Implications

The study can be applied to nursing practice, nursing education, nursing administration and nursing research.

The midwives have a vital role in providing safe and effective nursing care to prevent the complication of PIH. This can be facilitated by keeping in pace with the changing trends so as to provide adequate information and guidance to mothers with PIH mothers in order to prevent complications and encourage them to do Benson's relaxation therapy as a part of their daily routine.

Encourage the nursing students for effective utilization of research based practice in controlling blood pressure and to gain skills in practicing Benson's relaxation therapy and implement effectively in the hospital and in home setting.

Collaborate with governing bodies in formulating policies and employ specially qualified nurses trained in alternative and complementary therapies and can be included as a part of complementary therapies in nursing curriculum.

CHAPTER – I

INTRODUCTION

BACKGROUND OF THE STUDY

God's interest in the human race is nowhere better evinced than in obstetrics. **~Martin H. Fischer**

Pregnancy and motherhood has been considered the most fulfilling experience for a woman and a very important phase in her life. A woman in our society is considered as a goddess because she is most privileged to bear the offspring of her husband's family and therefore she is responsible for the continuity of his family line. Pregnancy, the transition from an embryo to a fetus is considered nothing less than a miracle by the scientists and the medical fraternity.

Over the course of the pregnancy the hematological changes occur in the plasma with consequent increase in blood volume by 40-50%, which helps to accommodate the changes brought on by this process. The increase in plasma volume increases the aldosterone level and thus leading to increased heart rate, stroke volume, and cardiac output.

The cardiac output increases to about 50% during the first trimester. The systemic vascular resistance also drops due to the smooth muscle relaxation and overall vasodilation caused by elevated progesterone, leading to a fall in blood pressure. Diastolic blood pressure consequently decreases between 12–26 weeks, and increases again to pre-pregnancy levels by 36 weeks. During this stage of pregnancy, abnormal physiological changes may occur, which may in turn result in gestational hypertension.

High blood pressure during pregnancy can decrease the amount of blood flow to the placenta, which affects the baby's supply of oxygen and nutrients. This may slow down the baby's growth and increase the risk of preterm delivery and thus become the cause for fetal and maternal mortality. Therefore, antenatal mothers should be periodically investigated to rule out abnormal and sustained elevations in blood pressure.

One of the leading causes of maternal death is pre-eclampsia—the rapid elevation of blood pressure during pregnancy which may lead to seizures (eclampsia), kidney and liver damage, and ultimately death. About 63,000 women and their babies are affected by poorly managed eclampsia and severe pre-eclampsia each year. Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists report (2009)^{107.}

Globally high blood pressure problems occur in 6 to 8% of all pregnancies, about 70% of which are first-time pregnancies.

In most of the Asian countries the estimated reduction of maternal mortality by three quarters as stated in the **millennium development goal** have not yet achieved. This has reached such epidemic proportions that countries around the world have finally started to take this problem and emphasize on reducing MMR by ³/₄ by 2015. UNICEF/UNFPA (2005) ^{108.}

India records a high maternal mortality ratio of 450 per 100,000 live births in 2005.-National estimates of maternal mortality are reported as 254 per 100,000 live births (**RGI, SRS 2004/06**)¹⁰³.

Studies have shown that as like pharmacological therapy and other complementary modalities, relaxation techniques go a long way in reducing hypertension and sustaining it at controlled levels. Relaxation provides a decrease in sympathetic nervous system allowing the arteries to widen and increases the available oxygen and blood flow to the body tissues and the peripheries.

The neural pathways of the sympathetic and the parasympathetic system guide the function of the stress response and the relaxation response. Through a training process involving relaxation exercises, the patient learns to regulate a balance in these pathways.

Relaxation works through psycho-physiological means implying that both the mind and the body are involved in the quieting process. Progressive muscle relaxation training focuses on the muscle groups and allows them to relax.

A Harvard physician in the US proved the mind body connection by showing simple relaxation techniques practiced for 10-20 minutes per day can help to reduce hypertension, help to control stress, decrease anxiety, improve cardiovascular health, and achieve a greater capacity for relaxation. **Dr.Herbert Benson (1976)**^{84.}

Relaxation techniques such as Herbert Benson's Relaxation Response, meditation and hypnosis suggest that relaxation starts in the thought processes, the cognitive process of the mind

Complementary therapies are currently one of the most discussed and debated health care topics and are in vogue in developed countries like the US. The results of several national surveys indicate that the majority of people seek out complementary and alternative therapies because they find these approaches to health care congruent with their own values and beliefs and physiological orientation towards health and life.

Various forms of relaxation therapies have been found to benefit patients in diverse ways. Physiologically, relaxation helps in the reduction of sympathetic

nervous system excitation that marks the **fight or flight response** and decreases the level of stress. Simply relaxing for 15 to 20 minutes twice or thrice daily results in lowered levels of adrenaline, cortisol, blood pressure, heart rate, and respiratory rate, which enhance the immune function and balance the activity in the right and the left hemispheres of the brain. **Nirmal Kaur (2009)**^{70.}

Thus it has been found through studies that prenatal care and lifestyle modifications can help in preventing complications arising out of pregnancy such as regular checkups, diet, exercises, and relaxation techniques which have been proved to be the better key in reducing the risks in pregnancy.

The main focus of this study was to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure control and to improve the maternal health outcome by preventing complications due to pregnancy induced hypertension in a cost effective and simple way.

NEED FOR THE STUDY

An ounce of prevention is worth a pound of cure - Jennifer Shweky

Pregnancy induced hypertension is one of the extensively present disease today. Whereby, PIH is the 2^{nd} leading cause of death in developed countries and 4^{th} leading cause of death in the developing countries.

Over the last few years, globalization has resulted in India in the process of transitioning from a developing to a developed country with increase in per capita income, food and lifestyle changes along with increased stress levels both at home and social environment

More than half a million women each year—one in every 90 seconds—dies due to pregnancy and childbirth. Among this hypertensive disorders in pregnancy complicate up to 12–22% of all pregnancies and are the second leading cause of maternal death and also contribute significantly to neonatal morbidity and mortality.

Although the proportion of pregnancies with gestational hypertension and eclampsia has remained about the same over the past decade, the rate of preeclampsia has increased by nearly one-third. This increase is due to a rise in the numbers of older mothers and of multiple births.

Some of the factors that complicate pregnancy are severe bleeding/ hemorrhage (25%), infections (13%), unsafe abortions (13%), *eclampsia (12%)*, obstructed labor (8%), other direct causes (8%), and indirect causes (20%) such as malaria, anemia, and HIV/AIDS . **WHO Report (2005)**¹⁰⁹.

According to the National Center for Health Statistics $(2009)^{105}$, pregnancy and child birth among women in the age group of > 30 yrs contribute to the complications to the highest level in the past 3 decades.

A prospective study in India was conducted to determine the prevalence of PIH among 400 pregnant mothers; the study findings revealed that the overall prevalence of PIH was 27%. **Datta.N. (2006)**⁴⁸.

Every year, more than half a million women living in developing countries die from pregnancy or childbirth-related complications. About a quarter of these "maternal" deaths occur in India. In 2005, a woman's lifetime risk of maternal death is estimated to be 1 in 70.

India which will soon achieve a state of development, have a higher risk in progressing from 4th place to 2nd place. Due to ill effects of globalization there is increased incidence of PIH when compared to few years ago. And this trend is expected to continue along the same lines and may even exceed the present incidence in developed countries. Hence, it is of utmost importance to help to

contribute in arresting this trend and bringing down the incidence rates of PIH in Indian women.

A scientific and philosophical researcher outlines the importance and benefits of relaxation and meditation which has got many benefits and it can reverse stress thereby preventing many health hazards. Practicing relaxation and meditation will decrease heart rate and respiratory rate and normalizes blood pressure and uses less oxygen more effectively for the body function. **Havaldhar.M.N.(2010)**⁵⁴.

Being in the nursing field, the investigator during clinical postings have observed and cared for mothers with PIH. Hence this was a motivating factor to undertake this study and also a factor to formulate emphatic and cost effective means of controlling PIH incidences in women, which is a small contribution to a massive effort needed to meet the millennium goals in bringing down the maternal mortality rate by 2015.

STATEMENT OF THE PROBLEM

A quasi-experimental study to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH at selected hospitals, Chennai, 2011.

OBJECTIVES

- 1. To assess the pre-test and post- test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B.
- 2. To compare the pre-test and post- test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B.
- 3. To compare the pre-test and post-test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH between Group A and Group B.
- 4. To associate the mean difference in post-test blood pressure level with selected demographic variables among mothers with PIH in Group A.

OPERATIONAL DEFINITION

Effectiveness

It refers to the outcome of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure as elicited by the investigator with the help of sphygmomanometer.

Pregnancy-Induced Hypertension (PIH):

In this study it refers to the mothers with increased blood pressure ($\geq 140/90$ mmHg) after 20 weeks of gestation.

Benson's Relaxation Therapy

It refers to the systematic and regular patterns, steps and procedures of breathing to lower blood pressure significantly by relaxing the muscles surrounding the constricted blood vessels as proposed by **Dr.Benson**, for a period of 20 minutes, three times a day for five days, which includes.

-Sit quietly in a comfortable position.

-Close eyes.

-Deeply relax all muscles beginning from feet and progressing up to the face and keep them relaxed.

-Breathe through nose, become aware of the breathing and say the word "*one*" silently while exhaling.

-Continue for 10 to 20 minutes.

-Do not worry and maintain a passive attitude when distracting thoughts occur, try to ignore them and continue to practice.

ASSUMPTIONS

Practice of Benson's relaxation therapy may control blood pressure among mothers with PIH.

NULL HYPOTHESES

NH₁: There is no significant difference between pre-test and post-test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B at the level of p<0.05.</p>

- NH₂: There is no significant difference between pre-test and post- test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH between Group A and Group B at the level of p<0.05.</p>
- **NH₃:** There is no significant association between the mean difference in blood pressure level with selected demographic variables among mothers with PIH in Group A at the level of p<0.05.

DELIMITATION

The study is delimited to a period of 4 weeks.

CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK

Kerlinger views theory as a set of interrelated concept that gives systematic view of a phenomenon that is explanatory and predictive in nature.

The present study is aimed to control blood pressure among mothers with PIH by Benson's relaxation therapy, Hence the study was based on Wiedenbachs Helping Art of Clinical Nursing Theory.

Ernestine is a nurse theorist and midwives who proposed a prescriptive theory and described it as a way of conceiving desired situations and the ways to attain it. It is directed towards an explicit goal. Here a prescription is developed based on a central purpose and it is implemented according to the realities of the situation. Ernestine Wiedenbach's theory explains the following.

CENTRAL PURPOSE

It refers to what the investigator want to accomplish or the overall goal towards which a nurse strives, by specifically directing activities towards the clients good.

In this present study the central purpose is to control blood pressure among mothers with PIH in order to prevent complications.

REALITIES

It refers to the physical, physiological, emotional, and spiritual factors that come into play in a situation involving nursing action. The five realities identified by Wiedenbach's are agent, recipient, goal, means, and framework.

AGENT

Agent is a participating nurse who has the personal attributes, capacities, capabilities, commitment and competence to provide nursing care. In the present study the agent is the investigator.

RECIPIENT

Is the patient, who is characterized by the personal attributes, problem, capacities, aspiration and ability to cope with the concern or problems being experienced. In this study the mothers with PIH were the recipient.

GOAL

The goal here is similar to the central purpose which is to control blood pressure by using Benson's relaxation therapy.

MEANS

They are the activities and devices used by the nurses to achieve the goal. In this study the Benson's relaxation therapy is to control blood pressure among mothers with PIH.

FRAMEWORK

It refers to facilities in which nursing is practiced. The frame work in this study has been considered as the setting in which the study has been conducted in Vijaya Hospital, Mambalam Public Health Centre, Chennai.

NURSING PRACTICE

Nursing practice consist of identifying need for help, ministering the needed help and validating that the needed help was met.

IDENTIFICATION

This involves the process of determining the need for help based on the existence of a need. The investigator after obtaining consent from the sample carried out a pre- test blood pressure level and assessed to identify the need for help using sphygmomanometer.

MINISTRATION

It refers to the provision of needed help. In this study the investigator administered Benson's relaxation therapy to control blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and routine measures in Group B.

VALIDATION

It refers to the collection of evidence that shows whether the need have been met as a direct result of the action. Post-test blood pressure level was done followed by compilation and analysis of the collected data to validate if the need for help was met.

OUTLINE OF THE REPORT

- Chapter I : Dealt with introduction, background of the study, need for the study, statement of the problem, objectives, operational definitions, assumptions, null hypotheses, delimitation and conceptual framework.
- **Chapter II** : Contains the review of literature related to the present study.
- **Chapter III** : Presents the methodology of the study and plan for data analysis.
- **Chapter IV** : Focuses on data analysis and interpretation.
- **Chapter V** : Enumerates the discussion and findings of the study.
- **Chapter VI** : Consist of summary, conclusion, implications, recommendations and limitations of the study.

The study report ends with selected Bibliography and Appendices.

CHAPTER – II

REVIEW OF LITERATURE

The review of Literature is an essential aspect of scientific research. It entails the systematic identification, reflection, critical analysis and reporting of existing information in relation to the problem of interest. The purpose of review of literature is to obtain comprehensive knowledge and in-depth information about the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy.

This chapter deals with the broad view of literature related to effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy in control of blood pressure among PIH antenatal mothers.

Section A: Studies related to PIH.

Section B: Studies related to effectiveness of Bensons relaxation therapy.

SECTION A: STUDIES RELATED TO PIH

Gaillard (2011)⁵²conducted a population-based prospective study among 8623 women from early pregnancy in Netherlands. The main objective of the study is to find out the association of maternal age with systolic and diastolic blood pressure in each trimester of pregnancy and the risks for gestational hypertensive disorders. The findings showed that older maternal age is associated with lower second and third trimester systolic blood pressure, but higher third trimester diastolic blood pressure, thus maternal age is not consistently associated with the risks of gestational hypertensive disorders. **Bhattacharyya R et al** (2011)⁴⁴ conducted a cross sectional record based institutional study from 1999-2008 to evaluate the maternal and perinatal outcome of eclamptic mothers in Burdwan Medical College, among 5991 pregnant mothers with eclampsia admitted in the inpatient department of the tertiary care teaching hospital. Case fatality rate, mean induction delivery time & birth-weight, perinatal mortality rates were recorded. Study revealed that the incidence of eclampsia <20 years was 6.97%. Eclampsia was noted primarily in primigravida (7.43%) and unbooked (6.41%) mothers. The overall case fatality rate was 6.05% and eclampsia contributed 27.85% of all maternal deaths during the last two years of the study period. The overall incidence of low birth weight baby was 26.96% and perinatal mortality was 30.33%.

Nanjundan P, (2011)⁶⁹ conducted a case-control study in (PGIMER), Chandigarh India between April 2007 and January 2008, to identify the clinical and historical risk factors associated with early onset Pre preeclampsia/eclampsia in women attending a tertiary care hospital, among 100 women with early onset severe pre-eclampsia/eclampsia (\leq 34 weeks) with mild non-protein uric hypertension (>34 weeks). Multiple logistic regression analysis was used to determine the risk factors for pre-eclampsia. The study findings showed that the risk factors associated with increased risk of early onset of severe pre-eclampsia were history of PIH in a previous pregnancy (71.40%), inadequate antenatal supervision (15.21%); family history of hypertension in one or more 1st-degree relative (8.92%).

Langenveld J et al (2011)⁶² conducted a retrospective cohort study among 380 primi mothers who developed early-onset pre-eclampsia in their first pregnancy between January 1996 and December 2004 to evaluate the potential risk factors for recurrence of pre-eclampsia and preterm delivery at two perinatal centers in Netherlands. The clinical parameters were evaluated as predictors for recurrence and logistic regression analysis was used. The study findings showed that women who had early severe pre-eclampsia in their first pregnancy had 17% risk of recurrence, with a delivery before 34 weeks of gestation

Pal .Gk.et.al (2011)⁷¹ conducted an experimental study to find out whether vagal withdrawal and sympathetic over activity contributes to the genesis of early onset of PIH among 100 normal pregnant women (control group) and 100 pregnant women having risk factors for PIH (study group) at all trimesters, in (JIPMER), India. Sympathovagal imbalance were assessed by spectral analysis of heart rate variability, such as BMI, basal heart rate and BP, the study finding showed that the sympathovagal imbalance in PIH is contributed by both sympathetic over activity and vagal withdrawal and it is mainly due to vagal inhibition.

Bratisl Lek Listy. (2011)⁴⁵ conducted a descriptive study to detect the risks groups in pregnant women that later develop (PIH) and risk factors that precede its appearance among 67 preeclamptic and 129 normotensive pregnancies in Macedonia. The study revealed that PIH is most frequently appearing in young primiparas 20-25 yrs and adult multiparas 31-35 yrs.

Golestan.M. (2011)⁵³ conducted a cross-sectional study to the births that were registered in all the maternity hospital in Yazd a central city of Iran. The study examined the prevalence and risk factors for low birth weight. The low birth weight neonates were compared with neonates whose birth weight exceeded 2,500g. The findings showed that one of the risk factors associated with low birth weight were due to PIH. The study suggested that screening for high risk pregnancies due to maternal diseases can be controlled by making provisions for periodic prenatal care and providing facilities which was essential to reduce the incidence of low birth weight.

Viny Varghese (April 2011)¹⁰² conducted a descriptive case study among 5 mothers with PIH in antenatal ward at Sri Ramakrishna Hospital, Coimbatore. The main aim of the study was to assess the needs and evaluate the condition of the

mothers with PIH after nursing intervention and to prepare a nursing case module based on the needs and problems of the mothers. Descriptive statistics was used to analyze the data. The study revealed that continuous nursing care with 1:1 ratio which helps to promote the maternal and fetal wellbeing and will reduce the complications in pregnancy.

Shrestha .S. (2010)⁷⁹ conducted a descriptive retrospective study on 164 preterm babies admitted in neonatal intensive care units from January 2007 to December 2009 in Dhulikhel hospital, Kathmandu university hospital , the aim of the study was to identify the risk factors associated with preterm birth and the cause of increasing morbidity and mortality rates. The study findings revealed that one of the main risk factor for preterm delivery was **pregnancy induced hypertension (13.1%)** which increased the morbidity and mortality rates.

Pradhan P et al (2010)⁷⁶ conducted a retrospective review of the medical records of 89 women with singleton pregnancy who gave birth to still-born infants in ≤ 28 weeks of gestational age from April 1998 to April 2007 to know the prevalence rate and devise preventive measures for still-born infants which accounted more than 50.0% of perinatal death at Nepal Medical College & Teaching Hospital. The study findings showed that major malformations were present in 5(5.6%) of 89 infants including 3 infants with neural tube abnormalities and 16 (19.0%) might been due to an indirect cause for stillbirth.

Jeffery S. (2009)⁵⁷ reported that recent epidemiological studies indicate that the effect of preeclampsia may persist long after pregnancy, in both the mother and the offspring has an increased incidence of cardiovascular disease and continued to be a significant source of maternal and fetal morbidity and mortality.

Chadi Yazveck (2009)⁴⁷ conducted a cohort study examining the effect of blood lead levels on BP and the incidence of PIH in the second and third trimesters of pregnancy. PIH was diagnosed in 106 subjects. Age, parity, weight gain, alcohol

intake, smoking habits, and calcium supplementation was compared between hypertensive and non-hypertensive mothers. The relationship between blood levels at mid pregnancy and BP suggested that environmental lead exposure may play an etiologic role in PIH.

Liu CM, Cheng PJ (2007)⁶⁴ conducted retrospective case control study on maternal complications and prenatal outcomes associated with gestational hypertension and severe preeclampsia in city hospital, China, among 364 women with severe preeclampsia and 249 women with gestational hypertension. The study findings revealed that risks factors associated with severe preeclampsia were lack of prenatal care compared with gestational hypertension, the study suggests that progression of gestational hypertension to severe forms of preeclampsia is associated with subsequent maternal complications.

Sonia Hernandez-Diaz (2007)⁸¹ conducted a descriptive study on the incidence of gestational hypertension among 4762 women with or without infertility treatment at birth centers in USA. The study showed that 8.9% of women had gestational hypertension without infertility treatment and 15.8% of women had gestational hypertension with infertility treatment. The study concluded that each specific infertility procedure or drugs were associated with similar related risks.

Peters R.K. (2007)⁷⁴ conducted a descriptive study on 120 patients with PIH who delivered during 2006. The incidence of preeclampsia and eclampsia, per 1000 births were 103 and 19 respectively. Two-thirds of eclamptic women were nulliparous and three-quarters were less than 25 years of age. All patients with eclampsia had convulsions before admission. Although maternal mortality was 4% in patients with preeclampsia and 0% in those with eclampsia, the fetal mortality rate was 32% in preeclamptic and 60% in eclamptic patients.

S. Poornima (2006)¹⁰⁰ conducted an exploratory study to analyze the risk factors associated with preeclampsia among preeclamptic women and normal

pregnant women at selected maternity hospital, Trichi. 60 mothers were selected by purposive sampling. The study findings showed that 81.25% of the preeclamptic women were in low socioeconomic group and 70% risk was in the normal pregnant women.

John Radeleffe (2005)⁵⁹ conducted a controlled cohort study to assess the risk of maternal complications after delivery among 1000 mothers with PIH in maternity hospital, USA. The study findings showed that 95% risk of preeclampsia is increased in women with a previous history of preeclampsia, raised BP and the risk is also increased with an interval of 10 years or more since a previous pregnancy, autoimmune disease, renal disease, and chronic hypertension.

Ma. R. et al $(2001)^{65}$ conducted a study on the descriptive epidemiology of PIH from 1995 to 2000. The study population was among 36070 pregnant women from 20 weeks of gestational age in Netherlands. The major finding of the study revealed that 15127 cases were identified and overall incidence rate of PIH was 11.1%. Among all cases, mild, moderate, and severe PIH were accounted for 71.4%, 22.3%, and 6.3% respectively. The proportions of PIH cases that occurred in the second trimester, third trimester, and during delivery appeared to be 42%, 34.4%, and 61.4% respectively.

SECTION B: STUDIES RELATED TO EFFECTIVENESS OF BENSONS RELAXATION THERAPY.

B.N. Hemavathi (April 2011)⁹⁹ conducted a study to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy in post-cesarean pain among 60 mothers in selected hospital, Trichi. Design used was quasi experimental pretest, post test design with control group. Benson's relaxation therapy using audio tape was given for 8 to 12 minutes thrice daily at an interval of 4 hours for 3 days. Numerical pain assessment scale was used to assess the level of pain. The findings of the study reveal that Benson's relaxation therapy helps in reducing the level of pain among post-cesarean mothers.

Samuelson .M. et al (2010)⁷⁸ conducted an explorative study to assess the effectiveness of a comprehensive mind body intervention for medical symptom relief among 331 out patients for a 12 week period in general hospital Boston, USA. The assessment tool used were the medical symptom checklist, health promoting lifestyle profile II and symptom checklist and assessed the physical and psychological symptoms before and after the intervention . The findings showed that a comprehensive mind-body intervention program might be useful as a complementary or adjunct therapy for treatment of medical symptom.

Cassey. A (2009)⁴⁶ conducted an experimental study on mind-body practices that elicit the relaxation response (RR) to prevent stress and treat BP among 80 mothers with PIH for a period of 8 weeks were assessed. The analyses revealed there is significant alteration in cellular metabolism, oxidative phosphorylation, reactivity to oxygen and response to oxidative stress in long-term & short-term practitioners of daily relaxation response (RR) practices.

Huddleston .J. (2009)⁵⁶ conducted a pre experimental study in 637 patients with hypertension for 3 months. Components of the intervention included smoking cessation, relaxation response training and cognitive /behavioral skills. The findings revealed that men and women improved significantly with respect to medical outcomes (BP, Wt, exercise conducting, frequency of symptoms of chest pain and shortness of breath)and psychological outcomes (general severity index, depression, anxiety and hostility) (p<0.001). This study suggested that provision of preliminary data for a subsequent randomized control trial to test mind/body-based interventions helps to determine the most effective outcomes at an affordable cost.

Lesserman. J. $(2008)^{63}$ conducted an experimental study evaluating the efficacy of the relaxation response on the post–operative recovery of 27 LSCS mothers randomly assigned to one of two groups. 13 experimental group patients received educational information and practice eliciting the relaxation response before and after surgery on both physiological and psychological recovery

variables. The study concluded that practicing the relaxation response before and after surgery may reduce BP, tension & anger.

Dusken JA et al (2008)⁵¹ conducted a double blind randomized trial study to assess the stress management among 61 hypertensive patients. The study aimed to assess the relaxation response training versus lifestyle modification on systolic hypertension and medication elimination for a period of 8 weeks in Benson-Henry Institute for Mind Body medicine at Massachusetts general hospital, Boston, USA. Inclusion criteria for the study was SBP 140-159mmHg, DBP >90mmHg and taking at least two antihypertensive medications. The study showed that both the groups had similar reductions in systolic blood pressure but significantly more participants in the relaxation response group eliminated an anti hypertensive medication while maintaining adequate blood pressure control.

Peters. R.K (2007)⁷³ conducted a 12-week randomized experimental study, investigating the effects of daily relaxation breaks on 126 working nursing mothers with increased BP. Group A was taught a technique for producing the relaxation response. Group B was taught to sit quietly and group C was taught nothing. Group A and group B were asked to take two 15 minutes relaxation breaks daily. The analyses showed that group-A nursing mothers had significant decrease in blood pressure.

Rustin $(2007)^{77}$ conducted a randomized control trial on the effects of biofeedback in reducing BP in individuals with mild hypertension among 38 mild hypertensive patients and divided into biofeedback group (n = 20) and Shan-no biofeedback signal group (n = 18). Results from analysis of 4 variants decreases in SBP and mean BP from baseline at week 12 follow-up were significantly greater in the active biofeedback group compared with the Shan biofeedback group. As the independent variable showed that biofeedback training has effectively lowered SBP and DBP.

Hoffmann .J.W. (2007)⁵⁵ conducted an experimental study to assess sympathetic nervous system activity to the subjects who were exposed to stress during monthly antenatal visits. Experimental subjects practiced a technique that elicited the relaxation response. The findings of the study revealed that nor-epinephrine concentrations in plasma, during subsequent visits were significantly higher. These observations were consistent with reduced nor epinephrine after regular elicitation of the relaxation in the experimental group.

Ali K. Katz D.L. (2007)⁴³ quasi randomized control trials on the effects of mind body therapy (meditation, guided imaginary, and yoga) on SBP and DBP. Participants in these trials were men and non-pregnant women greater than 18 years of age with hypertension. Randomized trials found largely favorable effects of the most popular mind and body therapies on SBP and DBP. Mind and body therapies significantly reduced SBP by a mean of 11.52 mmHg and DBP by 6.83 mmHg. Of these 3, mind and body demonstrated the results of greatest magnitude with mean SBP reduction of 19.07 mmHg and DBP by 13.13 mmHg.

Dusek J.K. et al (2006)⁵⁰ conducted a randomized control trial to find out the association between oxygen consumption and nitrous oxide production during relaxation response among 34 Americans. Data gathered by developing a method to quantify the depth of relaxation response using change in nitrous oxide slope measured by percentage in fractional exhaled nitrous oxide. The relaxation response training was given to experimental groups for 8 weeks by audio tapes. Results imply that after relaxation training there was inverse correlation in the relaxation response group (R = 0.41).

Porter.D.(2006)⁷⁵ conducted an experimental study at the corporate offices of a manufacturing firm for 12 weeks among 126 volunteers. The study investigated the effects of daily relaxation breaks on five self reported measures of health, performance and well-being. Group A was taught a technique for producing the relaxation response daily for two times. Group B was instructed to sit quietly.
Group C received no instructions. The study revealed that somatic symptoms and performance responded with the practice of the relaxation response than did behavioral symptoms and measures of well being.

Najafian J. (2006)⁶⁸ conducted an experimental study to evaluate the efficacy of 2 therapeutic technique namely relaxation and biofeedback assisted relaxation in reducing blood pressure among 56 mildly hypertension men. The participants were randomly divided into 3 groups, relaxation group 1, biofeedback assisted relaxation group 2, and control group 3. The treatment course consisted of 10 sessions. Relaxation was performed in groups 1 and 2 for 15 minutes in each session in the control group, only BP was measured at each session. Mean systolic and diastolic BP decreased after the study group in group 1 and 2. There was a significant difference between group 1 and 3 and between group 2 and 3.the study revealed that relaxation and biofeedback assisted relaxation technique can reduce systolic and diastolic BP.

Dunning (2005)⁴⁹ conducted an experimental study to determine the long term effects of relaxation therapy in patients with mildly untreated and uncomplicated hypertension on a 24 hr ambulatory intra-arterial BP . Four week screening period were followed by randomization to receive either relaxation therapy or non-specific counseling for one year. Ambulatory intra-arterial BP was measured before and after treatment. 35 subjects aged 20-60 who were being treated by general practitioners for HT were referred to take part in the study. The study revealed that relaxation therapy was an effective method in lowering 24 hr blood pressure in effective treatment for hypertension.

Mori. H. Saito. S. (2005)⁶⁶ conducted a study among 21583 selected Japanese population regarding deep breathing and BP. In experimental group, blood pressure was measured before and after taking 6 deep breathing over a period of 30 seconds and in the control group, BP was measured before and after a second's test in a sitting position without deep breathing. In both groups, systolic

BP, diastolic BP, and pulse rate were measured. Greater BP reductions were found in patient with a higher baseline BP in both the deep breathing and 30-second rest groups.

Joseph C. N .et al (2005)⁶⁰ conducted an experimental study to assess the effectiveness of slow breathing to improve arterial baroreflex sensitivity and reduce blood pressure in 46 hypertensive patients in Pavia hospital, Italy. Continuous noninvasive blood pressure, respiratory rate interval, respiration and end- tidal CO2 were monitored in sitting position during spontaneous breathing and controlled breathing at slower (6/min) and faster breathing (15/min) breathing rate. Baroreflex sensitivity was measured by autoregressive spectral analysis and "alpha angle" method. The study findings showed that slow breathing reduces blood pressure and enhances baroreflex sensitivity in hypertensive patients. These effects appear potentially beneficial in the management of hypertension.

CHAPTER – III

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

This chapter describes the methodology adopted in this study to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among PIH mothers at selected hospitals, Chennai.

This phase of the study deals with research design, variables, setting of the study, population, sample, criteria for sample selection, sample size, sampling technique, development and description of the tool, content validity, reliability, pilot study, procedure for data collection and plan for data analysis.

RESEARCH DESIGN

The research design used for this study was quasi –experimental non equivalent control group design. According to **Polit and Hungler (2011)**³⁴, the schematic representation of quasi –experimental (non equivalent control group design) study is shown below:

| CDOUD | PRETEST | INTERVENTION | POSTEST |
|---------|---------------------------------------|---|---------------------------------------|
| GRUUI | O_1 | Χ | O_2 |
| Group A | Assessment of blood pressure level | Benson relaxation therapy for a period of 20 minutes, three time day for 5 days with hospital routine (Tab Nifidepine 10mg bd & Tab Aldomet 200mg od) | Assessment of blood pressure level |
| Group B | Assessment of blood pressure level | Hospital routine(Tab Nifidepine10mg bd & Tab Aldomet 200mg od) | Assessment of blood pressure level |

VARIABLES OF THE STUDY

Independent Variable

Benson's Relaxation Therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH.

Dependent Variable

Blood pressure level among mothers with PIH.

Extraneous Variables

Age, Education, Occupation of the mother, Work pattern, Family income per month, Type of family, Area of residence, Family history of Hypertension, Parity, Gestational age, Time of diagnosis, Duration of PIH, On treatment, diet and History of other illness.

SETTING OF THE STUDY

The study was conducted at

Vijaya Hospital, a 200 bedded multispecialty hospital with 30 beds capacity in the antenatal ward.

Mambalam Public Health Centre, a 200 bedded multispecialty hospital with 20 beds capacity in the antenatal ward.

POPULATION

The study population included the mothers with PIH (between 20 to 38 weeks of gestational age) at Vijaya hospital and Mambalam public health centre, Chennai. Approximately 35-50 PIH mothers were admitted per month in both the selected hospitals.

Target Population

The target population for the study was mothers with PIH (between 20 to 38 weeks of gestational age) who were admitted in maternity ward of Vijaya hospital and Mambalam public health centre.

Accessible Population

Accessible population for the study was mothers with PIH (between 20 to 38 weeks of gestational age) who were available during the period of data collection.

SAMPLE

The study samples comprised of mothers with PIH (between 20 to 38 weeks of gestational age) in selected hospital's Chennai, who fulfilled the sample selection criteria.

CRITERIA FOR SAMPLE SELECTION

Inclusive Criteria

- 1. Antenatal mothers who were between 20 to 38 weeks of gestational age.
- 2. Antenatal mothers who were diagnosed with pregnancy induced hypertension.
- 3. Antenatal mothers who were admitted.
- 4. Antenatal mothers who can understand Tamil or English.

Exclusive Criteria

- 1. Mothers who were not willing to participate in the study.
- 2. Antenatal mothers who have visual and hearing impairment.
- 3. Antenatal mothers who had severe PIH.
- 4. Antenatal mothers who were on IV antihypertensive medications

SAMPLE SIZE

The sample size consisted of 60 mothers with PIH (30 in Group A & 30 in Group B) who fulfilled the inclusive criteria.

- 1. Group A samples were selected from Vijaya Hospital, Chennai.
- 2. Group B samples were selected from Mambalam Public health centre, Chennai.

SAMPLING TECHNIQUE

Non-probability convenient sampling technique was used to select the sample.

DEVELOPMENT AND DESCRIPTION OF TOOL

A structured questionnaire was developed to assess the demographic variables and assessment of biophysical (blood pressure) measurement was done to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy among mothers with PIH. The tool was constructed after extensive review of literature and consultation with Medical and Nursing experts in the field of Obstetrics and Gynecology.

The tool consisted of two sections

Section A

It comprised of demographic variables like Age, Education, Occupation of the mother, Work pattern, Family income per month, Type of family, Area of residence, Family history of Hypertension, Parity, Gestational age, Time of diagnosis, Duration of PIH, On treatment, diet and History of other illness.

Section **B**

This section consisted of assessment of biophysical measure (blood pressure) by sphygmomanometer and categorizing them according to the following standard guidelines.

| Category | Systolic BP (mmHg) | Diastolic BP (mmHg) |
|-----------------------|--------------------|---------------------|
| Normal | < 130 | < 80 |
| Pre-hypertension | 130 – 139 | 80 - 89 |
| Stage I hypertension | 140 – 159 | 90 – 99 |
| Stage II hypertension | ≥160 | ≥100 |

WHO/ISH -Blood pressure classification for PIH (2009) 93

CONTENT VALIDITY

The content validity of the data collection and intervention tool was obtained from 2 Obstetrician, 1 Psychologist, 1 Psychiatrist, 3 Obstetrical and gynaecological nursing specialist, 1 Certificate in relaxation techniques, 1 Calibration and standardization certificate for BP apparatus and the tool was modified as per the consensus of all experts and research committee, ICCR.

ETHICAL CONSIDERATION

Beneficiary

- This study benefited the study participants by practicing Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure control along with routine hospital measures.
 - i. Study participants were protected from harm, discomfort and exploitation by getting informed written consent.

Respect for human dignity

Clients were given full freedom to decide on participating in the study and those who were interested were selected for the study.

Justice

Samples were selected by using Non-probability convenient sampling technique and at the end of the study, Benson's relaxation therapy was also taught to the mothers with PIH in Group B.

PILOT STUDY

The Pilot study is a trial run, for the major study. The pilot study was planned and conducted after a formal research proposal presentation before the ethical committee, ICCR and faculty of Omayal Achi College of nursing. The pilot study was conducted after receiving the formal permission from the Principal, Omayal Achi College of Nursing. Medical Director, HOD of Maternity Ward and Nursing Superintendent for conducting pilot study in Vijaya Hospital and Sir Ivan Stedford Hospital, Chennai. The investigator conducted the pilot study by selecting 6 samples that fulfilled the sample selection criteria by non-probability convenient sampling technique. The data collection was done within a given period of one week.

A brief explanation was given on the purpose of the study to the mothers with PIH and consent obtained. Demographic variables were assessed. Pre-test BP was assessed by using a calibrated sphygmomanometer and 3 values were taken as an average in Group A and Group B. Benson's relaxation therapy was given for 20 minutes 3 times per day with hospital routine and observed by the investigator in Group A. In Group B only hospital routines were given. Post-test BP was assessed for 3 times and its average was taken and analyzed in Group A and Group B.

The gathered pilot study data was analyzed using both descriptive and inferential statistics. The findings of the pilot study showed that the calculated't' value of systolic blood pressure was 18.39 and diastolic blood pressure was 10.46 in the Group A .which suggested that the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy had a high statistically significant difference at p<0.001. Thus the findings revealed the feasibility and practicability of the study and after which the plan for actual study was made.

RELIABILITY OF THE TOOL

Reliability denotes the degree of consistency of the tool. The reliability of the tool was established by using inter rater method. The reliability score was r = 0.96. It was found to be highly reliable to proceed with the main study.

PROCEDURE FOR DATA COLLECTION

The main study was conducted after obtaining ethical committee clearance from ICCR, formal permission from the Principal of Omayal Achi College of Nursing, and

the Medical Director, HOD of Maternity Ward and Nursing Superintendent for conducting main study in Vijaya Hospital and Mambalam PHC, Chennai.

The medical officers and nursing in-charge were given information about the study. Brief information about self and the purpose of the study was explained to the mothers with PIH. Oral consent was obtained and confidentiality was assured to win their cooperation during data collection.

The investigator selected the samples by using non- probability convenient sampling technique. A total of 60 samples that fulfilled the inclusive criteria were selected for the study, (30 in Group A & 30 in Group B).

| Days | Time | Group A | Group B | |
|-------|--------------|--|---------------------------|--|
| Day 0 | 7.15 am | Established rapport | Established rapport | |
| | 7.30 am | Obtained informed consent | Obtained informed consent | |
| | 8.00 am → | Assessed demographic variables | Assessed demographic | |
| | 12 noon | Assessed Pre-test BP. | variables | |
| | 4.00 pm | | Assessed Pre-test BP. | |
| | | | | |
| Day1- | 7.15-7.30 am | Established rapport | Established rapport | |
| 5 | 7.30 am | Assessed Pre-test BP | Assessed Pre-test BP | |
| | ر 8-8.20am | | | |
| | 12-12.20pm | Benson's relaxation therapy for 20 minutes | Hospital routine ** | |
| | 4-4.20pm | & Hospital routine** | | |
| | 8.30 am | | | |
| | 12.30 pm > | Assessed post- test BP | Assessed post-test BP | |
| | 4.30 pm | | | |

Assessment of blood pressure level in Group A and Group B.

| Days | Time | Group A | Group B |
|-------|-----------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|
| Day 6 | 8.00am 12.00pm 4.00pm | Assessed Post-test BP. | Assessed Post-test BP. |

Hospital routine**: Tab. Nifidepine 10 mg bd & Tab. Aldomet 200 mg od.

PLAN FOR DATA ANALYSIS

Descriptive Statistics

- 1. Frequency and percentage distribution was used to analyze the demographic variables of the samples.
- 2. Mean and standard deviation was used to assess the pre- test and post- test blood pressure level.

Inferential Statistics

- 1. Paired "t" test was used to compare the pre-test and post -test level of blood pressure.
- One way ANOVA was used to associate the mean difference of post-test level of blood pressure with selected demographic variables of mothers with PIH in Group A.

CHAPTER – IV

DATA ANALYSIS AND INTERPRETATION

This chapter deals with the analysis and interpretation of data to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among 60 mothers with PIH.

On the basis of the objectives of the study the data was organized, tabulated and analyzed by using descriptive and inferential statistics. The results are presented under the following sections.

ORGANIZATION OF DATA

- Section A: Description of demographic variables of mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B.
- Section B: Assessment of pre-test and post-test level of Systolic and diastolic blood pressure in Group A and Group B.
- Section C: Assessment of effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B.
- **Section D:** Association of mean difference in the post test blood pressure level with selected demographic variables in Group A.

SECTION A: DEMOGRAPHIC VARIABLES OF MOTHERS WITH PIH IN GROUP A AND GROUP B.

Table 1(a): Frequency and percentage distribution of demographic variables
with respect to age, education, occupation of the mother, work
pattern and family income per month.

| | | | | N=60 | | |
|----------------------------|---------|-------|-------|---------|--|--|
| Demographic Variables | Group A | | Group | Group B | | |
| | No. | % | No. | % | | |
| Age in years | | | | | | |
| Below 20 | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| 21-25 | 1 | 3.33 | 6 | 20.00 | | |
| 26-30 | 12 | 40.00 | 13 | 43.33 | | |
| 31 and above | 17 | 56.67 | 11 | 36.67 | | |
| Education | | | | | | |
| Non-literate | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Primary education | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Secondary education | 1 | 3.33 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Higher secondary education | 19 | 63.33 | 14 | 46.67 | | |
| Degree and above | 10 | 33.33 | 16 | 53.33 | | |
| Occupation of the mother | | | | | | |
| Working | 24 | 80.00 | 19 | 63.33 | | |
| Not working | 6 | 20.00 | 11 | 36.67 | | |
| Work Pattern | | | | | | |
| Housewife | 6 | 20.00 | 10 | 33.33 | | |
| Clerical job | 13 | 43.33 | 1 | 3.33 | | |
| Technical job | 6 | 20.00 | 8 | 26.67 | | |
| Professional job | 5 | 16.67 | 11 | 36.67 | | |
| Family income per month | | | | | | |
| Less than 3000 | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| 3000 - 5000 | 8 | 26.67 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| 5000 - 8000 | 11 | 36.67 | 7 | 23.33 | | |
| 8000 and above | 11 | 36.67 | 23 | 76.67 | | |

Table 1(a), shows the frequency and percentage distribution of demographic variables with respect to age, education, occupation of the mother, work pattern and family income per month.

With regard to the demographic variables of mothers in Group A, majority 17 (56.67%) were in the age group of 31 and above, 19(63.33%) had

•

completed higher secondary education, 24(80.00%) were working women, 13(43.33%) were in clerical job and 11(36.67%) earns 5000-8000 and above respectively as family income per month.

In Group B majority 13(43.33%) were in the age group of 26-30yrs, 16(53.33%) had completed degree and above, 19 (63.33%) were working women, 11(36.67%) were in professional job and 23(76.67%) earns 8000 and above respectively as family income per month.

Table 1(b): Frequency and percentage distribution of demographic variableswith respect to type of family, area of residence, family history ofhypertension and parity.

| | Gr | oup A | Gr | Group B | | |
|--------------------------------|-----|-------|-----|---------|--|--|
| Demographic Variables | No. | % | No. | % | | |
| Type of family | | | | | | |
| Nuclear | 23 | 76.67 | 22 | 73.33 | | |
| Joint | 7 | 23.33 | 8 | 26.67 | | |
| Extended family | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Others | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Area of residence | | | | | | |
| Urban | 17 | 56.67 | 22 | 73.33 | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Suburban | 12 | 40.00 | 8 | 26.67 | | |
| Rural | 1 | 3.33 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Family history of hypertension | | | | | | |
| Yes | 18 | 60.00 | 19 | 63.33 | | |
| No | 12 | 40.00 | 11 | 36.67 | | |
| If yes, specify | | | | | | |
| Father | 4 | 22.22 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Mother | 14 | 77.78 | 19 | 100.00 | | |
| Sibling | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Father and mother | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Father's sibling | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Mother's sibling | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 | | |
| Parity | | | | | | |
| Primi | 19 | 63.33 | 24 | 80.00 | | |
| Multi | 11 | 36.67 | 6 | 20.00 | | |

N=60

Table 1(b) shows frequency and percentage distribution of demographic variables with respect to type of family, area of residence, family history of hypertension and parity.

With regard to the demographic variables of mothers in Group A, majority 23 (76.67%) lives in nuclear family, 17(56.67%) live in urban area. 18(60.00%) had a family history of hypertension, 14(77.78%) had maternal history of hypertension and 19(63.33%) were primi mothers respectively

In Group B majority 22(73.33%) of mothers with PIH lives in a nuclear family and 22(73.33%) live in an urban area, 19(63.33%) had family history of hypertension, 19(100%) had maternal history of hypertension and 24 (80.00 %) were primi mothers respectively.

Table 1(c): Frequency and percentage distribution of demographic variableswith respect to gestational age, duration of PIH, on treatment, dietand history of any other illness.

| | | |] | N=60 |
|------------------------------|-----|--------|---------|--------|
| Domographic Variables | G | roup A | Group B | |
| Demographic Variables | No. | % | No. | % |
| Gestational age | | | | |
| 20 - 24 weeks | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 |
| 25 - 29 weeks | 13 | 43.33 | 14 | 46.67 |
| 30 - 34 weeks | 14 | 46.67 | 16 | 53.33 |
| 35 - 38 weeks | 3 | 10.00 | 0 | 0.00 |
| Duration of PIH | | | | |
| 0 - 3 months | 30 | 100.00 | 30 | 100.00 |
| 3 - 6 months | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 |
| 6 - 9 months | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 |
| On treatment | | | | |
| Yes | 30 | 100.00 | 30 | 100.00 |
| No | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 |
| Diet | | | | |
| Vegetarian | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 |
| Non-vegetarian | 30 | 100.00 | 30 | 100.00 |
| | | | | |
| History of any other illness | | | | |
| Yes | 15 | 50.00 | 17 | 56.67 |
| No | 15 | 50.00 | 13 | 43.33 |
| If yes, specify | | | | |
| Diabetes | 15 | 100.00 | 16 | 94.12 |
| Asthma | 0 | 0.00 | 1 | 5.88 |
| Jaundice | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 |
| Anemia | 0 | 0.00 | 0 | 0.00 |

Table 1(c) shows the frequency and percentage distribution of demographic variables with respect to gestational age, duration of PIH, on treatment, diet and history of any other illness.

With regard to the demographic variables of the mothers in Group A majority 14 (46.67%) were in the gestational age of 30-34 weeks, 30(100%) of them had the illness from 0-3 months, 30(100%) were on treatment, 30(100%) were on non-vegetarian diet, 15 (50.00%) had history of other illness, among them 15(100.00%) had diabetes respectively.

In the Group B, majority 16(53.33%) were in the gestational age of 30-34 weeks, 30(100%) of them had the illness from 0-3 months, 30(100%) were on treatment, 30(100%) were on non- vegetarian diet, 17(56.67%) of mothers with PIH have history of other illness, among them majority of 16(94.12%) had diabetes.

SECTION B: ASSESSMENT OF PRE-TEST AND POST- TEST LEVEL OF SYSTOLIC AND DIASTOLIC BLOOD PRESSURE IN GROUP A.

Table 2(a): Frequency and Percentage distribution of pretest and post test
level of Systolic and diastolic BP (mmHg) in Group A.

| | | | | | | | • | N =60 |
|-------------------|-----|-------|------|-------|-----|-----------|------|-------|
| | | SYSTO | OLIC | | Ι | DIASTOLIC | | |
| BLOOD PRESSURE | PRE | | POST | | PRE | | POST | |
| mmHg | No. | % | No. | % | No. | % | No. | % |
| Normal | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 3.33 | 16 | 53.33 |
| (<130) | | | | | | | | |
| Pre hypertension | 0 | 0 | 28 | 93.33 | 18 | 60.0 | 14 | 46.67 |
| (130 – 139) | | | | | | | | |
| Stage I | 24 | 80.0 | 2 | 6.67 | 11 | 36.67 | 0 | 0 |
| (140 – 159) | | | | | | | | |
| Stage II | 6 | 20.0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| (≥160) | | | | | | | | |

Table 2(a) shows the frequency and Percentage distribution of pretest and post test level of Systolic BP (mmHg) and diastolic BP (mmHg) in Group A.

With regard to pretest level of systolic blood pressure in Group A, 24(80.00%) were stage I hypertensive, 6(20.00%) were in stage II hypertension. In the post-test systolic blood pressure 28(93.33%) were pre-hypertensive and 2(6.67%) were in stage I hypertension.

With regard to pretest level of diastolic blood pressure in Group A, 11(36.67%) were stage I hypertensive, 18(60.00%) were in pre- hypertension and (3.33%) had normal blood pressure. In the post test systolic blood pressure 14(46.67%) were pre-hypertensive and 16(53.33%) had normal blood pressure.

| | | | | | | | N | 1=60 |
|---------------------------------|----------|-------|------|-------|-----------|-------|------|------|
| | SYSTOLIC | | | | DIASTOLIC | | | |
| BLOOD PRESSURE | PRE | | POST | | PRE | | POST | |
| mmHg | No. | % | No. | % | No. | % | No. | % |
| Normal (<130) | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Pre hypertension (130 – 139) | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 4 | 13.33 | 3 | 10 |
| Stage I (140 – 159) | 14 | 46.67 | 13 | 43.33 | 26 | 86.67 | 27 | 90 |
| Stage II (≥160) | 16 | 53.33 | 17 | 56.67 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |

Table 2(b): Frequency and Percentage distribution of pretest and post testlevel of Systolic and diastolic BP (mmHg) in Group B.

Table 2(b) shows the frequency and percentage distribution of pretest and post test level of Systolic BP (mmHg) and diastolic BP (mmHg) in Group B.

With regard to pretest level of systolic blood pressure in Group B, 16(53.33%) were stage II hypertensive, 14(46.67%) was in stage I hypertension. In the post test systolic blood pressure 17(56.67%) were stage II hypertensive and 13(43.33%) were in stage I hypertension.

With regard to pretest level of diastolic blood pressure in Group B, 26(86.67%) were stage I hypertensive, 4(13.33%) were in pre-hypertension. In the post test diastolic blood pressure level, 27(90%) were stage I hypertensive and 3(10%) were in pre-hypertension.

- SECTION C: ASSESSMENT OF EFFECTIVENESS OF BENSON'S RELAXATION THERAPY ON BLOOD PRESSURE AMONG MOTHERS WITH PIH IN GROUP A AND GROUP B.
- Table 3(a): Comparison of pretest and post test level of Systolic and
diastolic Blood Pressure (mmHg) in Group A.

N = 60

| Blood | Pretest | | Post Test | | Mean | 't' value | |
|-----------|---------|------|-----------|------|------------|----------------------|--|
| Pressure | Mean | S.D | Mean | S.D | Difference | t value | |
| Systolic | 154.80 | 7.49 | 129.37 | 5.42 | 25.43 | t = 15.477*** (S) | |
| Diastolic | 97.90 | 5.81 | 79.17 | 4.53 | 18.73 | t = 7.839*** (S) | |

***p<0.001, S – Significant

Table 3(a) shows the comparison of pretest and post test level of Systolic and diastolic BP (mmHg) among mothers with PIH in Group A.

When comparing the pretest and posttest systolic blood pressure in the pretest, the mean value was 154.80 with S.D 7.49 and in the post test the mean value was 129.37 with S.D 5.42 with the mean difference of 25.43. The calculated 't' value was 15.477 which was greater than the table value and this indicated that there was a high significant difference at p<0.001 level in Group A.

With regard to diastolic blood pressure level in the pretest, the mean value was 97.90 with S.D 5.81 and in the post test the mean value was 79.17 with S.D 4.53 with the mean difference of 18.73. The calculated 't' value was 7.839 which was greater than the table value and this indicated that there was a high significant difference at p<0.001 level in Group A.

| Ν | = | 60 |
|---|---|-----|
| | | ~ ~ |

| Blood | Pretest | | Post Test | | Mean | 't' value | |
|-----------|---------|-------------|-----------|------------|------------|-----------|--|
| Pressure | Mean | S.D | Mean | S.D | Difference | t vulue | |
| Systolic | 150 47 | 10.84 159.4 | 150 /3 | 9.43 11.18 | 0.03 | t = 0.062 | |
| Systone | 139.47 | | 137.43 | | 0.03 | (N.S) | |
| Diastolia | 04.03 | 3.64 | 04 57 | 3 50 | 0.53 | t = 1.532 | |
| Diastone | 94.03 | 5.04 | 94.37 | 5.57 | 0.55 | (N.S) | |

N.S - Not Significant

Table 3(b) shows the comparison of pretest and post test level of Systolic and diastolic Blood Pressure (mmHg) among mothers with PIH in Group B.

When comparing the pretest and posttest systolic blood pressure in the pretest, the mean value was value was 159.47 with S.D 10.84 and in the post test the mean value was 159.43 with S.D 11.18 with the mean difference of 0.03. The calculated't' value was 0.062 which showed no statistically significant difference in Group B.

With regard to diastolic blood pressure level in the pretest, the mean value was 94.03 with S.D 3.64. And in the post test the mean value was 94.57 with S.D 3.59 with the mean difference of 0.53. The calculated't' value was 1.532 which showed no statistically significant difference in Group B.

Table 4(a): Comparison of pretest level of Systolic and diastolic BloodPressure between Group A and Group B.

| Ν | = | 60 |
|---|---|----|
| | | |

| Blood | Group A | | Group B | | Group B | | Mean | 't' value |
|-----------|-------------|------------|---------|-------|------------|-----------|------|-----------|
| Pressure | Mean | S.D | Mean | S.D | Difference | t value | | |
| Systolic | 154.80 | 7 /0 | 150 /7 | 10.84 | 1 67 | t = 1.940 | | |
| Systone | 134.00 7.47 | 7.47 | 157.47 | 10.04 | 4.07 | (N.S) | | |
| Diastolic | 07.00 | 5 81 | 94.03 | 3.64 | 3 13 | t = 1.899 | | |
| Diastolic | 97.90 J.01 | 74.05 5.04 | 5.15 | (N.S) | | | | |

N.S – Not Significant

Table 4(a) shows the comparison of pretest and post test level of Systolic and diastolic BP (mmHg) among mothers with PIH in between Group A and Group B.

When comparing the pretest level of Systolic in between Group A and Group B the mean value was 154.80 with S.D 7.49 and in Group B the mean value was 159.47 with S.D 10.84 with the mean difference of 4.67. The calculated't' value of 1.940 shows no statistically significant difference in the pretest level of Systolic BP.

When comparing the pretest level of diastolic in between Group A and Group B the mean value was 97.90 with S.D 5.81 and in Group B the mean value was 94.03 with S.D 3.64 with the mean difference of 3.13. The calculated't' value of 1.899 shows no statistically significant difference in the pretest level of diastolic BP.

| IN = OU | N | = | 60 |
|---------|---|---|----|
|---------|---|---|----|

| Blood | Grou | ıp A | Grou | ıp B | Mean | 't' value |
|-----------|--------|------|--------|-------|------------|----------------------|
| Pressure | Mean | S.D | Mean | S.D | Difference | t value |
| Systolic | 129.37 | 5.42 | 159.43 | 11.18 | 30.06 | t = 13.252*** (S) |
| Diastolic | 79.17 | 4.53 | 94.57 | 3.59 | 15.4 | t = 14.588*** (S) |

***p<0.001, S - Significant

Table 4(b) shows the comparison of post test level of Systolic and diastolic Blood Pressure (mmHg) among mothers with PIH in between Group A and Group B.

When comparing the post test level of Systolic in between Group A and Group B the mean value was 129.37 with S.D 5.42 and in Group B the mean value was 159.43 with S.D 11.18 with the mean difference of 30.06. The calculated 't' value of 13.252 shows high significant difference in the post-test level of systolic BP at p<0.001.

With regard to post-test diastolic blood pressure level in Group A, the mean value was 79.17 with S.D 4.53. And in Group B the mean value was 94.57 with S.D 3.59 with the mean difference of 15.4. The calculated't' value of 14.588 shows high significant difference in the post-test level of diastolic BP at p<0.001.

SECTION D: ASSOCIATION OF MEAN DIFFERENCE IN THE LEVEL OF SYSTOLIC BLOOD PRESSURE WITH THE DEMOGRAPHIC VARIABLES IN GROUP A.

The findings revealed that the mean difference in the level of systolic and diastolic blood pressure with selected in Group A had no statistically significant association with selected demographic variables such as Age, education, occupation of the mother, work pattern, family income, type of family, area of residence, family history of hypertension, parity, gestational age, duration of PIH, On treatment, diet, and history of any other illness respectively.

CHAPTER – V DISCUSSION

The study was conducted to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH.

This chapter deals with the detailed discussion on the findings of the study interpreted from statistical analysis. The findings are discussed in relation to the objectives, need for the study, related literature and conceptual framework. It is presented in line with the objectives of the study.

The first objective was to assess the pre-test and post-test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A.

In assessing the pretest systolic blood pressure level in Group A, majority 24(80.00%) were in stage I hypertension, 6(20.00%) were in stage II hypertension.

And in assessing the pretest diastolic blood pressure level 11(36.67%) were in stage I hypertension, 18(60.00%) were pre- hypertensive and (3.33%) had normal blood pressure. This indicates that the blood pressure should be controlled.

In assessing the post-test systolic blood pressure level 28(93.33%) were prehypertensive and 2(6.67%) were stage I hypertension, whereas in the post-test diastolic blood pressure level 14(46.67%) were pre-hypertensive and 16(53.33%) had normal blood pressure.

Thus, the majority of mothers with PIH in Group A, who were stage I hypertensive in the pretest had pre-hypertension and normal blood pressure in the post-test, indicating a good control of blood pressure. In assessing the pretest systolic blood pressure level in Group B majority 16(53.33%) were in stage II hypertension and 14(46.67%) were in stage I hypertension.

In assessing the pretest diastolic blood pressure level 26(86.67%) were in stage I hypertension and 4(13.33%) were pre-hypertensive. This indicates that the blood pressure should be controlled.

In assessing the post-test systolic blood pressure level 17(56.67%) were in stage II hypertension, 13(43.33%) were in stage I hypertension, whereas in the post- test diastolic blood pressure level 27(90%) were in stage I hypertension and 3(10%) were in pre-hypertension.

Thus, the majority of mothers with PIH in Group B who were in stage II hypertension in the pretest were still in stage I and stage II hypertension in the post-test, indicating a poor control of blood pressure.

The above findings are consisted with the finding of the a retrospective study conducted by **Mustafa Adelaja L** (2011)⁶⁷ to determine the pattern of obstetric emergencies and its influence on maternal and perinatal outcome at the Olabisi Onabanjo University Teaching Hospital (OOUTH), Sagamu, Nigeria among 1420 total deliveries. During the period, there were 262 obstetric emergencies. One of the most common obstetric complications was **severe pregnancy-induced hypertension/eclampsia**. The study suggests that prevention/effective management of PIH will help to reduce maternal and perinatal mortality.

The second objective was to compare the pre-test and post- test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B.

In Group A the findings revealed that in the pretest systolic blood pressure, the mean value was 154.80 with S.D 7.49 and in the post test the mean value was

129.37 with S.D 5.42 with the mean difference of 25.43. The calculated t' value was 15.477 which was greater than the table value and this indicated that there was a high significant difference in blood pressure level at p<0.001.

With regard to diastolic blood pressure level in the pretest, the mean value was 97.90 with S.D 5.81 and in the post test the mean value was 79.17 with S.D 4.53 with the mean difference of 18.73. The calculated't' value was 7.839 which was greater than the table value and this indicated that there was a high significant difference at p<0.001 level which showed the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy in the control of blood pressure.

In group B the findings revealed that in the pretest systolic blood pressure, the mean value was 159.47 with S.D 10.84 and in the post test the mean value was 159.43 with S.D 11.18 with the mean difference of 0.03. The calculated't' value was 0.062 which showed no statistically significant difference.

With regard to diastolic blood pressure level in the pretest, the mean value was 94.03 with S.D 3.64. And in the post test the mean value was 94.57 with S.D 3.59 with the mean difference of 0.53. The calculated't' value was 1.532 which showed no statistically significant difference.

Hence the null hypotheses (NH_1) stated earlier "that there is no significant difference in the pre-test and post-test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B at the level of p<0.05" was rejected.

The above findings are consistent with the finding of the study conducted by **Thangamani** (2006)⁸², an experimental study to evaluate the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy in reducing BP among PIH mothers for a period of 4 weeks in antenatal ward in selected hospital, Salem ,poly clinic and Vijaya hospital. 60 antenatal mothers were selected by purposive sampling. The design

used was time series design. The mean value of systolic SBP was 8.5 and 5.2 in DBP with the calculated't' value of 7.1 and 13.32 respectively. Thus the results showed that there was a significant reduction in both systolic and diastolic BP among PIH mothers. Thus the findings suggested that Benson's relaxation therapy was effective in reducing BP among mothers with Pregnancy-induced hypertension.

The third objective was to compare the pre-test and post-test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH between Group A and Group B.

The assessment reveals that when comparing the pretest level of Systolic blood pressure level in between Group A and Group B the mean value was 154.80 with S.D 7.49 and in Group B the mean value was 159.47 with S.D 10.84 with the mean difference of 4.67. The calculated 't' value of 1.940 showed no statistically significant difference.

When comparing the pretest level of diastolic in between Group A and Group B the mean value was 97.90 with S.D 5.81 and in Group B the mean value was 94.03 with S.D 3.64 with the mean difference of 3.13. The calculated 't' value of 1.899 showed no statistically significant difference.

When comparing the post test level of Systolic in between Group A and Group B the mean value was 129.37 with S.D 5.42 and in Group B the mean value was 159.43 with S.D 11.18 with the mean difference of 30.06. The calculated't' value of 13.252 showed high significant difference at p<0.001.

With regard to post-test diastolic blood pressure level in Group A, the mean value was 79.17 with S.D 4.53. And in Group B the mean value was 94.57 with S.D 3.59 with the mean difference of 15.4. The calculated't' value of 14.588 shows high significant difference in the post-test level of diastolic BP at p<0.001.

Hence the null hypotheses (NH_2) stated earlier that "there is no significant difference in the pre-test and post-test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH between Group A and Group B at the level of p<0.05" was rejected

The above findings are consisted with the finding of the study conducted by **Kaushik. R.M.et al** $(2006)^{61}$ an experimental study on the effects of mental relaxation and slow breathing for 10 minutes each, among 100 patients who were either receiving antihypertensive drugs or were not on medicated. Blood pressure, Respiratory rate and Heart rate were analyzed and compared. The study findings revealed that even a single session of mental relaxation and slow breathing can result in a temporary fall in BP which showed that there was statistically significant fall in SBP of (P<0.005) and DBP of (P<0.01).

The fourth objective was to associate the mean difference in post-test blood pressure level with selected demographic variables among mothers with PIH in Group A.

The association of demographic variables with mean difference in the posttest blood pressure level was done using one way ANOVA.

The data analysis revealed that there was no significant association of the mean difference in post-test blood pressure level with selected demographic variables such as age, education, occupation of the mother, work pattern, family income per month, type of family, area of residence, family history of hypertension, parity, gestational age, duration of PIH, on treatment, diet, history of other illness among mothers with PIH in Group A.

Hence the null hypothesis (NH_3) stated earlier that "there is no significant association between the mean difference in blood pressure level with selected demographic variables among mothers with PIH in Group A at the level of p<0.05" was accepted.

CHAPTER – VI

SUMMARY, CONCLUSION, IMPLICATIONS, RECOMMENDATIONS AND LIMITATION

This chapter presents the summary, conclusion, implications, recommendations and limitation of the study.

SUMMARY

High blood pressure during pregnancy can decrease the amount of blood flow to the placenta, which affects the baby's supply of oxygen and nutrients. This may slow down the baby's growth and increase the risk of preterm delivery and if left unmanaged, this may result in fetal and maternal mortality. Therefore, antenatal mothers should be periodically investigated to rule out abnormal and sustained elevations in blood pressure, which should be managed appropriately in a timely manner to prevent complications arising from it.

Studies have shown that as like pharmacological therapy and other complementary modalities, relaxation techniques go a long way in reducing hypertension and sustaining it at controlled levels chronically.

`Relaxation provides a decrease in sympathetic nervous system allowing the arteries to widen and increases the available oxygen and blood flow to the body tissues and the peripheries.

Thus it has been found through studies that, appropriate prenatal care and proper lifestyle modifications like regular visits to the physician's office for checkups, diet, exercises, and relaxation techniques can help to prevent complications arising out of pregnancy and have proved to be the better key in reducing the risks from pregnancy. Complementary therapy in nursing is diverse and complex as like other nursing specialties. Keeping this in view, the present study was done to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure control among mothers with PIH in a cost effective way.

The objectives of the study were

- **1.** To assess the pre-test and post test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B.
- 2. To compare the pre-test and post- test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B.
- 3. To compare the pre-test and post-test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH between Group A and Group B.
- 4. To associate the mean difference in post-test blood pressure level with selected demographic variables among mothers with PIH in Group A.

The study was based on the assumptions that

Practice of Benson's relaxation therapy may control blood pressure among mothers with PIH.

The null hypotheses formulated were

- **NH**₁: There is no significant difference between pre-test and post-test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH in Group A and Group B at the level of p<0.05.
- **NH₂:** There is no significant difference between pre-test and post- test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH between Group A and Group B at the level of p<0.05.
- NH₃: There is no significant association between the mean difference in blood pressure level with selected demographic variables among mothers with PIH in Group A at the level of p<0.05.</p>

The investigator have done an in depth review of literature which included both theoretical and empirical related studies, conceptual framework, research methodology, statistics and formation of the tool which provided a strong foundation for the study.

The conceptual framework for the study was based on **WIEDENBACH'S HELPING ART OF CLINICAL NURSING THEORY** which provided a comprehensive framework for the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy in control of blood pressure among mothers with PIH.

The content validity of the data collection and intervention tool were obtained from 4 Medical experts, 1 Psychologist and 3 nursing experts in the field of Obstetrics and Gynaecology.

The reliability of the tool was determined by using inter rater method and the feasibility of the study was analyzed by conducting a pilot study at Sir Ivan Stedeford hospital and Vijaya hospital, Chennai

The reliability score was r = 0.96. It was found to be highly reliable to proceed with the main study.

The main study was conducted at selected hospitals, Chennai. Nonprobability convenient sampling technique was used and the sample size for the study was 60 mothers with PIH who fulfilled the sample selection criteria, and ethical aspects were maintained throughout the study.

Refined tools were used for data collection. The data collected were analyzed and interpreted based on the objectives and null hypothesis using descriptive and inferential statistics. The findings revealed that there was a significant difference in the level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH after Benson's relaxation therapy.

The major findings of the study revealed that

The analysis revealed that the mean difference in pretest systolic blood pressure was 4.67 and 6.13 in pre-test diastolic blood pressure with the calculated't' value of 1.940 and 1.899 respectively. The findings revealed that there was no statistically significant difference in the pretest level of systolic and diastolic BP in between Group A and Group B.

The analysis revealed that the mean difference in post-test systolic blood pressure was 30.06 and 15.4 in post-test diastolic blood pressure with the calculated't' value of 13.252 and 14.588 respectively, which is suggestive of effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy between Group A and Group B.

Hence the findings revealed that there was a significant difference in the pretest and post-test level of blood pressure among mothers with PIH between Group A and Group B.

The analysis also revealed that there was no significant association between the mean difference in post-test blood pressure level with selected demographic variables such as age, education, occupation of the mother, work pattern, family income per month, type of family, area of residence, family history of hypertension, parity, gestational age, duration of PIH, on treatment, diet and history of other illness among mothers with PIH in Group A.

CONCLUSION

The present study assessed the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH. The study findings revealed that there was a significant difference in the blood pressure level and concluded that Benson's relaxation therapy was an effective tool to control blood pressure among mothers with PIH.

IMPLICATIONS

The investigator has drawn the following implications from the study, which is of vital concern in the field of Nursing practice, Nursing Administration, Nursing Education and Nursing Research.

Nursing Practice

The staff nurses should:

- Keep in pace with the changing trends so as to provide adequate information and guidance to mothers with PIH mothers in order to prevent complications.
- Train the staff nurses to teach Benson's relaxation therapy to the mothers with PIH as a part of their daily routine.
- Encourage the use of Benson's relaxation therapy along with other complementary therapies to reduce blood pressure in various settings.

Nursing Education

The nurse educator as a facilitator and expert in the field of nursing education should:

- Encourage the students for effective utilization of research based practice in controlling blood pressure.
- Encourage and educate the student nurses to gain skills in practicing Benson's relaxation therapy on effective control of blood pressure.
- Benson's relaxation therapy can be included as a part of complementary therapies in nursing curriculum.

Nursing Administration

The nurse administrator should be able to:

Ensure that the program is implemented effectively in the hospital and in home setting.

- Formulate information booklet, video show, to teach the clients to control blood pressure through non-pharmacological interventions like Bensons relaxation therapy among PIH mothers.
- Collaborate with governing bodies in formulating policies and employ specially qualified nurses trained in alternative and complementary therapies.

Nursing Research

As a nurse researcher,

- Further studies can be done to assess the practice and effects of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure control among PIH mothers.
- Disseminate the findings through conferences, professional journals which will make application of research findings to be effective.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The study recommends the following for future research

- To incorporate Bensons relaxation therapy along with the drug regimen for controlling blood pressure among PIH mothers in Vijaya hospital and Mambalam PHC.
- To start a separate wing in the public health department to incorporate various non pharmacological interventions like Bensons relaxation therapy as an adjuvant to treat PIH.
- To conduct camps and create awareness among PIH mothers and their family members regarding Benson's relaxation therapy.
- > To conduct similar study on a large scale for better generalization.
- To conduct a similar study in different settings
- > To conduct as a cohort study to assess the practice among PIH clients
- To conduct similar study to evaluate the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy among antenatal mothers on physiological and psychological wellbeing.

To conduct similar study in clinical setting regarding knowledge and practice of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure level among PIH antenatal mothers.

LIMITATION

The investigator had difficulty to collect related literature review.
APPENDIX – H

DEMOGRAPHIC DATA

1. Age in years

- a. Below 20
- b. 21 -- 25
- c. 26 30
- d. 31 and above

2. Education

- a. Non-literate
- b. Primary Education.
- c. Secondary Education.
- d. Higher Secondary Education
- e. Degree and above.

3. Occupation of the mother.

- a. Working Woman.
- b. Not Working Woman

4. Work Pattern

- a. Housewife.
- b. Clerical job.
- c. Technical job.
- d. Professional job

5. Family Income per month.

- a. Less than 3000
- b. 3000 5000

- c. 5000 8000
- d. 8000 and above

6. Type of family

- a. Nuclear.
- b. Joint
- c. Extended family
- d. Others

7. Area of residence

- a. Urban
- b. Suburban
- c. Rural

8. Family History of Hypertension.

- a. Yes
 - a₁) Father.
 - a₂) Mother.
 - a₃) Sibling.
 - a₄) Father and Mother.
 - a₅) Father's sibling
 - a₆) Mother's sibling
 - a₇) others.
- b. No

9. Parity

- a. Primi
- b. Multi
- c. Elderly

10. Gestational Age

- a. 20 24 weeks.
- b. 25 29 weeks.
- c. 30 34 weeks

11. Duration of PIH

- a. 0-3months
- b. 3-6months
- c. 6-9months

12. On treatment

- a. Yes. If yes, specify____
- b. No.

13. **Diet**

- a. Vegetarian
- b. Non-vegetarian

14. History of any other illness.

- a. Yes.
- a1) Diabetes.a2) Asthma.
- ,
- a3) Jaundice.
- a4) Anemia.
- b. **No**

xxviii

OBSERVATION SCHEDULE

| S.No. | Pre E (mn | -test SP nHg) | OBSERVATION | | | | | | | | Post-test BP (mmHg) | | | |
|-----------------|----------------------------|---------------------|-------------|-----|-------|-----|-------|-----|-------|-----|---------------------------|-----|--------------------|---------------------|
| | Day 0 | | Day 1 | | Day 2 | | Day 3 | | Day 4 | | Day5 | | Day 6 | |
| 1 | SBP | DBP | SBP | DBP | SBP | DBP | SBP | DBP | SBP | DBP | SBP | DBP | SBP | DBP |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | AVERAGE OF PRE- TEST | | | | | | | | | | | | AVEI OF I TE | RAGE POST EST |
| MEAN DIFFERENCE | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| Category | Systolic BP (mmHg) | Diastolic BP (mmHg) |
|-----------------------|--------------------|---------------------|
| Normal | < 130 | < 80 |
| Pre-hypertension | 130 – 139 | 80 - 89 |
| Stage I hypertension | 140 – 159 | 90 - 99 |
| Stage II hypertension | ≥160 | ≥100 |

WHO/ISH -Blood pressure classification for PIH (2009)

XXX

APPENDIX – J

CODING FOR DEMOGRAPHIC VARIABLES

| 1. Age in years | |
|------------------------------------|---|
| a. Below 20 | 1 |
| b. 21 – 25 | 2 |
| c. $26 - 30$ | 3 |
| d. 31 and above | 4 |
| 2. Education | |
| a. Non-literate | 1 |
| b. Primary Education. | 2 |
| c. Secondary Education. | 3 |
| d. Higher Secondary Education | 4 |
| e. Degree and above. | 5 |
| 3. Occupation of the mother. | |
| a. Working Woman. | 1 |
| b. Not Working Woman | 2 |
| 4. Work Pattern | |
| a. Housewife. | 1 |
| b. Clerical job. | 2 |
| c. Technical job. | 3 |
| d. Professional job | 4 |
| 5. Family Income per month. | |
| a. Less than 3000 | 1 |
| b. 3000 – 5000 | 2 |
| c. 5000 – 8000 | 3 |
| d. 8000 and above | 4 |
| 6. Type of family | |
| a. Nuclear. | 1 |
| b. Joint | 2 |
| c. Extended family | 3 |
| d. Others | 4 |
| 7. Area of residence | |
| a. Urban | 1 |
| b. Suburban | 2 |
| c. Rural | 3 |
| 8. Family History of Hypertension. | |
| . Yes | 1 |
| a ₁) Father. | |
| a ₂) Mother. | |
| a ₃) Sibling. | |

a.

| a₄) Father and Mother. a₅) Father's sibling a₆) Mother's sibling a₇) others. b. No | 2 |
|--|---|
| | |
| 9. Parity | |
| a. Primi | 1 |
| b. Multi | 2 |
| c. Elderly | 3 |
| 10. Gestational Age | |
| a. $20 - 24$ weeks. | 1 |
| b. $25 - 29$ weeks. | 2 |
| c. $30 - 34$ weeks | 3 |
| | |
| 11. Duration of PIH | 1 |
| a. 0- 3months | 1 |
| b. 3-6months | 2 |
| c. 6-9months | 3 |
| 12. On treatment | |
| a. Yes. If yes, specify | 1 |
| b. No. | 2 |
| 13 Diet | |
| a Vegetarian | 1 |
| h Non-vegetarian | 2 |
| o. Tton vegetarian | 2 |
| 14. History of any other illness. | |
| a. Yes. | 1 |
| a1) Diabetes. | |
| a2) Asthma. | |
| a3) Jaundice. | |
| a4) Anemia. | |
| b. No | 2 |

xxxiii

APPENDIX – K

STEPS IN THE INTERVENTION TOOL

| STEP-1 | Sit quietly in a comfortable position. |
|--------|---|
| STEP-2 | Close eyes. |
| STEP-3 | Deeply relax all muscles beginning from feet and progressing up to the face and keep them relaxed. |
| STEP-4 | Breathe through nose, become aware of the breathing and say the word " <i>one</i> " silently while exhaling. |
| STEP-5 | Continue for 10 to 20 minutes |
| STEP-6 | Do not worry and maintain a passive attitude when distracting thoughts occur, try to ignore them and continue to practice |

INTERVENTION PROTOCOL

| Days | Time | Group A | Group B | | | |
|-------|--------------|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Day 0 | 7.15 am | Establishing rapport | Establishing rapport | | | |
| | 7.30 am | Obtaining informed consent | Obtaining informed consent | | | |
| | 8.00 am | Assessing demographic variables | Assessing demographic variables | | | |
| | 12 noon | Assessing Pre-test BP. | Assessing Pre-test BP. | | | |
| | 4.00 pm | | | | | |
| Day | 7.15-7.30 am | Establishing rapport | Establishing rapport | | | |
| 1-5 | 7.30 am | Assessing Pre-test BP | Assessing Pre-test BP | | | |
| | ح 8-8.20am | | | | | |
| | 12-12.20pm | Benson's relaxation therapy for 20 | Hospital routine ** | | | |
| | 4-4.20pm | minutes & Hospital routine** | | | | |
| | 8.30 am | | | | | |
| | 12.30 pm > | Assessing post- test BP | Assessing post-test BP | | | |
| | 4.30 pm | | | | | |
| Day 6 | 8.00am | | | | | |
| | 12.00pm | Assessing Post-test BP. | Assessing Post-test BP. | | | |
| | 4.00pm | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

Hospital routine**: Tab. Nifidepine 10 mg bd & Tab. Aldomet 200 mg od.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

BOOKS:

- Annamma Jacob (2005). Comprehensive Textbook of Midwifery. New Delhi: Jaypee Brothers Publication.
- Arul Kumaran, S. & Rathnam, S. (2003). The management of labour. Chennai: Orient Longman Private Limited.
- Basavanthappa, B.T. (2009). Nursing theories. New Delhi: Jaypee Brothers Medical Publishers.
- 4. Bennet Ruth, B., &Linda, V. (2003). Myles Textbook for Midwives. London: Churchill Livingstone.
- Bobak Irene, M. (2000). Essential of Maternity Nursing. Washington: C.V. Mosby Company.
- Breyer Rosamund, M. (1990). Theory for Midwifery Practice. London: Macmillan Press Limited.
- Bulechek, G. & Mc Closkey, J. (2000) Nursing intervention Classifications. St.Louis: Mosby.
- 8. Carol, Mc Cormick (2003). **Myles Textbook for Midwives**. Edinburg: Churchill Livingston Elsevier.
- Chalmers (1998).Effective Care in Pregnancy and Childbirth. New York: Oxford University Press Limited.
- Dawn, C.S. (2004). Textbook of Obstetrics and Neonatology. New Delhi: Vora book center.
- Diane M. Fraser, et al. (2005). Myles Textbook for Midwives.
 Philadelphia: Churchill Livingstone Publishers.
- Dickason Elizabeth Jean (2000). Maternal- Infant Nursing Care. Philadelphia: Mosby Publication.
- Dutta, D.C. (2004). Textbook of Obstetrics including Perinatology and Contraception. Calcutta: New Central Book Agency and Publishers.

- Erna E. ziegel, et al. (2000). Obstetric Nursing. New York: Macmillan Publishing Company.
- Fitz Patrick Joyce, et al. (1997). Conceptual Models of Nursing-Analysis and Application. London: Apprentice Hall Publications Company.
- Geri Le Brindo Wood, & Judith Haber. (1990). Nursing research methods, critical appraisal and utilization. Toronto: CV.Mosby Company.
- Ghai, O. P. (2009). Essential paediatrics. New Delhi: CBS Publishers and Distributors.
- Gunasheela Sulochana,(2004).Practical Management of Obstetric
 Problems. New Delhi: Jaypee Brothers Medical Publishers.
- Gurumani, N. (2005). An Introduction to Biostatistics. Chennai: MJP Publishers.
- Hacker Neville, F. (2004) .Essentials of Obstetrics and Gynecology. Noida: Reed Elsevier India Private Limited.
- 21. Kitzinger, S. (1980). Pregnancy and Child Birth. New York: Penguin.
- Leveno Kenneth. (2003).Williams Manual of Obstetrics. USA: The McGraw-Hill Publications.
- Linda Wheeler, (1997). Nurse- Midwifery Hand book: A Practical Guide to Prenatal and Postpartum Care. Philadelphia: Lippincott Williams & Wilkins Publications.
- 24. Linda, J. et al. (1994). **Obstetric and Gynaecologic Care.**USA: Slack Incorporated Publishers.
- Lobiondo Wood Geri, &Judith Haber, (2006). Nursing Research Methods& Clinical Appraisal for EBP. Philadelphia: Mosby Elsevier Publications.
- 26. Mahajans, B.K. (2005). **Methods in Biostatistics**. New Delhi: Jaypee Brothers medical publishers.
- Marlow Dorothy, R., & Redding Barbara, A. (2005). Text book of paediatric nursing. Philadelphia: W.B.Saunders Company.
- Matha Ralie Allingon. (2000). Nursing theorist and their work. New Delhi: Mosby Publications.

- Menon Krishna (2001). Mudaliyar and Menon's Clinical Obstetrics and Gynaecology. Madras: Orient Longman Publications.
- Nancy Burns (2009). The practice of Nursing Research. Missouri: Saunders publication.
- Padubidri, V. (2006). Textbook of Obstetrics. New Delhi: B.I. Publications Private Limited.
- 32. Parker, E. (1990). Nursing theories in practice. USA: National league for nursing theories in practice.
- Pilliteri Adele (2007). Maternal and Child Health Nursing. Philadelphia: Lippincott Williams Publications.
- Pollit, F. Denise., & Hungler, P. Bernadette. (2011). Nursing Research Principles and Methods. Philadelphia: J.B Lippincott Company.
- Raman, A. V. (1988). A simple Guide to Maternity Nursing. Kanpur: PrintoriumnPress.
- Richard Hatchett& David .R.Thompson (2006). A comprehensive guide in cardiac nursing .Churchill living stone publications.
- 37. Rose mary. A.Payne.Relaxation techniques.A practical handbook for health care professional. Churchchill livingstone publications. 161-171.z
- Sudip Chakravarthy (2003). Manual of Obstetrics. London: Elseiver Publications.
- Sundar Rao (2006). Introduction to Bio statistics and Research Methods. New Delhi: Prentice-Hall of India.
- 40. Susan A. Orshan, (2008). Maternity, Newborn and Women's Health Nursing. Philadelphia: Lippincott Williams and Wilkins.
- 41. Wattz, F.C. & Bausell, B.R. (1981).Nursing Research Design, Statistics and components Analysis. Philadeiphia:F.A Davis Company.
- 42. Wesley Ruby, L. (1997). Nursing Theories and Models. Pennsylvania: Springhouse Corporation.

JOURNALS:

- 43. Ali K. Katz D.L. (2007). Yoga, Meditation and Guided imagery. Clinical applications and Nurse practice forum.9 (4).243-255.
- Bhattacharyya R et al (2011).Eclampsia–scenario in a hospital, a ten years study. Department of obstetrics and gynecology, Burdwan medical college.37 (2):66-70.
- 45. Bratisl Lek Listy. (2011).Previous pregnancy history, parity, maternal age and risk of pregnancy induced hypertension. Journal of obstetrics and gynecology 112(4):188-91.
- Cassey. A (2009). Blood pressure stress and mental health. Nursing Research.2 (31), 89-94.
- Chadi Yazveck (2009).Outcome of women undergoing management of severe pre-eclampsia. British journal of obstetrics and gynecology. 107(1)1252-1257.
- Datta.N. (2006).An Indian rural experience in PIH. Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology. Xxvi (6), 551-533.
- 49. Dunning (2005). Effects of meditation techniques and progressive muscle relaxation. **Journal of Neurosciences.**46 (1), 77-86.
- Dusek J.K. et al (2006). Exercise and Hypertension. International Journal of Nursing Studies. 34(3) 192-200.
- Dusken JA et al (2008).Stress management versus lifestyle modification on systolic hypertension and medication elimination. Journal of alternative complementary medicine .14(2):129-38.
- Gaillard R, (2011), Maternal age during pregnancy, the generation R study.
 American Journal of Hypertension.24 (9), 1056-1053.
- Golestan.M. (2011) .Prevalence and risk factors for low birth weight .Singapore medical Journal .52(10):730-733.
- Havaldhar.M.N (2010). A scientific and philosophical research in yoga.
 Journal of yoga the science. 5(6), 18-19.
- Hoffmann .J.W. (2007).Breathing control lowers blood pressure. Journal of Human hypertension .15(4).263-269.

- 56. Huddleston .J. (2009). Relationship of psychological stress and preeclampsia. Journal of Gynecology and Neonatology Nursing. 36(1).
- Jeffery S. (2009). Hypertensive disorders of pregnancy. Journal of Obstetrics and gynecology. (27).13.
- 58. Jeyarekha. J.(2011). Role of Jacobson's relaxation therapy on reduction of stress among antenatal mothers. **Nightingale nursing times**. 7(6), 4-5.
- John Radeleffe (2005). Risk for Pre-eclampsia. British Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology 113(4).379-386.
- Joseph C. N .et al (2005). Slow breathing improves arterial baroreflex sensitivity and decreases blood pressure in pregnancy induced hypertension.
 Department of internal medicine, university of Pavia .46(4):714-8.
- Kaushik.R.M.et.al (2006) .Effects of mental relaxation and slow breathing in essential hypertension. Journal of complementary therapies in medicine. 17, 1-62.
- Langenveld J et al (2011). Recurrence risk and prediction in pregnancy induced hypertension. British Journal of Obstetrics and gynecology.118 (5):585-95.
- 63. Lesserman.J. (2008).Transcendental Meditation and blood pressure .**International Journal of Neuroscience**.9 (6).520-528.
- 64. Liu CM, Cheng PJ (2007).Maternal complications and perinatal outcomes associated with pre-eclampsia, Journal forums medical association 107(2):129-138.
- 65. Ma. R. et al (2001).Detecting and treating PIH. American Journal of maternal and child health nursing .8,398-405
- Mori. H. Saito. S. (2005). Effects of relaxation in Blood pressure. Journal of Neurosciences. 82(2)95-98.
- Mustafa Adelaja L, Olufemi Taiwo O.(2011). Maternal and fetal outcome of obstetric emergencies in a tertiary health institution in South-Western Nigeria. ISRN Obstetric and Gynecology160932.Epub . Jun 16.
- Nafajan .J. (2006). Relaxation and biofeedback in reducing blood pressure
 .ARYA Journal 1(3); 178-182.

- 69. Nanjundan P,et.al (2011). Risk factors for early onset of preeclampsia/eclampsia. Journal of Obstetrics and gynecology .31(5):384-9.
- Nirmal kaur (2009).Trends in complementary therapies. Indian Journal of Holistic Nursing. (4) 12.
- 71. Pal GK.et.al. (2011).Vagal withdrawal and sympathetic over activity in PIH.International journal for hypertension. 36(1), 417-418.
- Peters J.M. (2006). Risk factors influencing PIH. American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology.194 (4).1050-1060.
- 73. Peters. R.K (2007). Application of the relaxation technique in several hospitals. Journal of Psychiatry Clinical Neurosciences. 49(5) 259.
- 74. Peters. R.K (2007). Stretching exercise to reduce the incidence of preeclampsia. Journal of Hypertension in pregnancy.27 (2)113-130.
- Porter.D.(2006). Non- pharmacological control of hypertension. A critical review of the experimental literature. Journal of Pharmacology .46(9).75-79.
- Pradhan P et al (2010). Still birth –a tragic journey; a critical analysis. Nepal medical college journal .12(4):239-43.
- Rustin (2007).Effects of biofeedback in reducing blood pressure. Journal of alternative complementary medicine.13 (5), 547-554.
- Samuelson .M. et al (2010). Exploring the effectiveness of a comprehensive mind-body intervention for medical symptom relief. Journal of alternative complementary medicine. 16(2):187-92.
- Shrestha .S. (2010). Outcome of preterm babies and associated risk factors in a hospital. Journal of Nepal medical association.50 (180):280-90.
- Sibai B.M. (2007). Management of pre-eclampsia depends on fetal gestational age, fetal status, and severity of maternal condition at time of evaluation. Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology. 105 (2), 402-410
- Sonia Hernandez-Diaz (2007). Lived in experience of women with PIH.
 Nightingale Nursing Times. 3(6).36-41.
- Thangamani. (2009).PIH and Benson relaxation therapy. Indian Journal-The nurse. (2); 21-25.

INTERNET REFERENCE:

- Benson H. Minn Med. 2009. Mind-body medicine: a model of the comparative clinical impact of the acute stress and relaxation responses 92(5):47-50. Retrieved on December, 2010, from http;//www.ncbi.nlm. nih.gov/pmc/articles.
- Benson, Herbert. 1976, Steps to Elicit the Relaxation Response. Retrieved on October 2010 from http:// www.RelaxationResponse.org./steps.
- Benson, Herbert. 2000. Staying Healthy in a Stressful World. Retrieved on December 2010 from http://www.pbs.org/ body and soul.
- Breathe deep to lower blood pressure; doc says yoga in pregnancy files -Health - Heart health .Retrieved on October 2010, from http://www.youandyourfamily.com.
- 87. Daniel Goleman. May 13, 1986, Relaxation: surprising benefits detected by, The New York Times.Retrived on January.2011 December from http://www.query.nytimes.com/gvt.
- Demianczuk NN, Saunders LD, Wang FL, Fraser WD.2002. Impact of preeclampsia and gestational hypertension on birth weight by gestational age. American Journal of Epidemiology. Retrieved on January.14, 2010 from http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc.
- Kiesling, Stephen, and T. George Harris. 1989. The prayer war Herbert Benson's research on health benefits of prayer. *Psychology Today*. Retrieved on October 2010 from http://www find articles .com.
- Law CM, Barker DJ, Bull AR, Osmond C. 2006. Maternal and fetal influences on blood pressure. Retrieved on December 8, 2010. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov.
- Meditation experience is associated with increased cortical thickness. 2005. Retrived on December, 2010 from. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov /pmc/articles.
- 92. National epidemiological investigation group on pregnancy-induced hypertension Chinese J Obstetrics and Gynecology.Retrieved on December 2010 from http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles.

- 93. Pickering. et.al.2005.British classification of hypertension association retrieved on Oct 2010 from www.medicalcriteria.com/criteria/ hypertensionclassif.htm
- Report of the National High Blood Pressure Education Program a Report in Pregnancy. American Journal of Obstetric Gynecology. http://www.ncbi. nlm.nih.gov.
- WHO. (2007). Census of perinatal mortality. Retrieved on November 2010, from http:// www. Maternal mortality. /Index.
- Wikipedia. (2012). Pregnancy Induced Hypertension. Retrieved on January
 2012 from, en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pregnancy Induced Hypertension.
- 97. Xiong X, Fraser WD. Impact of pregnancy-induced hypertension on birth weight by gestational week. Pediatric Perinatal Epidemiology.2004; 18:186– 191.Retrived on November 10, 2010 from emedicine.medscape. com/article/180709-overwiew.
- Zhang J, Zeisler J, Hatch MC, Berkowitz G. Epidemiology of pregnancyinduced hypertension. Epidemiol Rev. 1997; 19:218–232.Retrived on December 20, 2010.from http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles.

UN PUBLISHED DISSERTATION:

- 99. B.N. Hemavathi (April 2011). A quasi experimental study to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on post caesarian pain among mothers in a selected hospital at Trichy. Unpublished thesis, submitted to the Tamil Nadu Dr. MGR Medical University.
- 100. S. Poornima (2006). An explorative study to study to study to analyze the risk factors associated with pre-eclampsia among preeclamptic women and normal pregnant women at selected maternity hospital. Trichy. Unpublished thesis, submitted to the Tamil Nadu Dr. MGR Medical University.
- 101. Sujila Rani.T. (2010). Effectiveness of Bensons relaxation therapy on quality of sleep among orthopedic patients in Royal Pearl hospital. Trichy. Submitted to the Tamil Nadu Dr. MGR Medical University.

102. Viny Varghese (April 2011). A descriptive case study in nursing interventions with PIH at Sri Ramakrishna Hospital, Coimbatore. Unpublished thesis, submitted to the Tamil Nadu Dr. MGR Medical University.

REPORTS:

- 103. (RGI, SRS 2004/06). Sample Registration System (SRS). Registrar General of India (RGI) on maternal mortality rates www.censusindia. gov.in/.../SRS.../Final-MMR%20Bulletin-2007-09.
- 104. Ministry of Health and Family Welfare (2009). Four Years of NRHM2005-2009: Making a Difference Everywhere, GOI.
- 105. National Center for Health Statistics (2009) www.cdc.gov/nchs/ national center for health
- 106. Report of US department of health and human services (2009).Healthy people 2010. www.cdc.gov/nchs/healthy_people/hp2010/ hp2010_ indicators.htm
- 107. Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists report (2009). On maternal death www.rcog.org.uk > Women's health
- 108. UNICEF/UNFPA (2005) Maternal mortality rate, estimates and maternal welfare..www.who.int/whosis/mme_2005.pdf
- 109. World Health Organization, (2005). World Health Statistics-2005. Geneva Switzerland. www.who.int/whosis/whostat/en/.

APPENDIX – C

LETTER SEEKING EXPERT OPINION FOR CONTENT VALIDITY

From

Ms. MINI ABRAHAM

M.Sc. (Nursing) II Year, Omayal Achi College of Nursing, Puzhal, Chennai-600066.

То

Respected sir /Madam,

Sub: Requisition for expert opinion and content validity regarding.

I am a M.Sc. (Nursing) II year student of Omayal Achi College of Nursing #45, Ambattur, Puzhal Chennai - 600 066, under Dr .M.G.R. Medical University.

As a partial fulfilment of my M.SC. (Nursing) degree program I am conducting a research study on 'A quasi-experimental study to assess the effectiveness of Bensons relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH at selected hospitals, Chennai 2011. For the research study I have developed a structured questionnaire and observational tool (biophysical measurement-blood pressure) to assess the effectiveness of the therapy on blood pressure among mother with PIH.

I am sending the tool for content validity for your expert& valuable opinion .I will be very thankful if you return it at the earliest to the undersigned.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully, (Mini Abraham)

Enclosures:

- 1. Statement of the problem & objectives of the study.
- 2. Certificate of content validity.
- 3. Intervention tool

LIST OF EXPERTS FOR CONTENT VALIDITY

MEDICAL EXPERTS

1.Dr. Mrs.Susheela MD, MRC, (O & G)

HOD-Obstetrics and gynecology, Sir Ivan Stedford Hospital, Ambattur, Chennai- 600 053.

2. Dr.Mrs.Sandy Jaison MBBS, MD, DNB (O & G)

Medical Officer, Obstetrician and Gynecologist, Sir Ivan Stedford Hospital, Ambattur, Chennai – 600 053.

3. Dr. M. Malaiappan .M.D. (Psychiatry)

Associate professor in Psychiatry Madras Medical College Institute of Mental Health, Chennai.

4. Mrs.Kannama.R. M.A., M.Phil (Psychology)

Department of Psychiatry Southern Railway Hospital Perambur, Chennai

NURSING EXPERTS:

1. Dr.Mrs.C.Susila

Professor cum Principal, Obstetric and Gynecological Nursing, Billroth College of Nursing, Maduravoyal, Chennai.

2. Mrs. Rosaline Rachel

Professor cum Principal, Obstetric and Gynecological Nursing, Indira College of Nursing, Pandur – 631 203.

3. Mrs.Nalini

Reader,

•

Obstetric and Gynecological Nursing,

Sri Ramachandra College of Nursing,

Sri Ramachandra University,

Porur, Chennai – 600 116.

vii

viii

ix

Х

xi

xii

xiii

xiv

XV

xvi

xvii

xviii

APPENDIX – E CERTIFICATE OF ENGLISH EDITING

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

This is to certify that the dissertation work 'A quasi- experimental study to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH at selected hospitals, Chennai 2011, done by Mrs. Mini Abraham, II year, M.Sc.(Nursing) student of Omayal Achi College of Nursing, Chennai, is edited for English language appropriateness by

Seal with Date:

Signature

APPENDIX – F

CERTIFICATE OF TAMIL EDITING

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

This is to certify that the dissertation work 'A quasi - experimental study to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH at selected hospitals, Chennai 2011, done by Ms. Mini Abraham, M.Sc.(Nursing) II year student of Omayal Achi College of Nursing, Chennai, is edited for Tamil language appropriateness by

Seal with Date:

Signature
APPENDIX – G

INFORMED CONSENT REQUISITION FORM

Good morning,

I Ms. Mini Abraham, M.sc.(Nursing) II year student from Omayal Achi College of Nursing, Chennai, conducting "A quasi-experimental study to assess the effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH at selected hospitals, Chennai", as a partial fulfilment of the requirement for the degree of M.Sc. Nursing under the Tamil Nadu Dr. M.G.R. Medical University. During the study demographic variables will be collected along with assessment of blood pressure before and after Benson's relaxation therapy for a period of one week.

So, I request you to co-operate with me to conduct this study effectively and successfully. I assure you that the information obtained will be kept confidential.

Thanking you.

INFORMED CONSENT FORM

I understand that I am being asked to participate in a research study conducted by Ms. Mini Abraham, Msc (N) student of Omayal Achi College of Nursing. This research study will evaluate "Effectiveness of Benson's relaxation therapy on blood pressure among mothers with PIH in selected hospitals, Chennai".

If I agree to participate in the study, I understand that the details regarding my demographic variables will be collected for the study purpose.

I also understand that during the period of the research study, I will be clinically observed with regards to efficacy and results of the study. The collection of data may be recorded and will take place in privacy. No identifying information will be included.

I understand that there are no risks associated with this study and the study data will be kept confidential. However, this information may be used in nursing publication or presentations.

If I need to, I can contact **Ms. Mini Abraham**, M.S.c (N), student of Omayal Achi College of Nursing, #45 Ambattur road, Puzhal, Chennai, at any time during the study.

The study has been explained to me. I have read and understood this consent form, all of my questions have been answered, and I agree to participate. I understand that I will be given a copy of this signed consent form.

Signature of Participant

Signature of Investigator

xxii

Date:

Date: